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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE®/E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Moody Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”), | report to shareholders our annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”or “Period”).

RESULTS

In 2019, the Chinese textile industry faced a tough time. Under the
Sino-U.S. economic and trade frictions, the punitive tariffs imposed
by the U.S. on Chinese products adversely affect Chinese exports to
its biggest overseas market, including a steep decline in textile and
apparel exports. Facing both sluggish domestic and overseas market
demands, the overall profitability of the Chinese textile industry was
adversely affected. Under such unfavourable circumstances, the Group
has commenced in sales of shoes and clothes in December 2018,
which has developed into a major revenue-generating unit of the
Group.

The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB517.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately 106.5% compared with the revenue of RMB250.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to increase in sales amounts in
shoes and clothes, which was commenced in the fourth quarter
of 2019. Revenue from sales of shoes and clothes increased from
approximately RMB23.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to approximately RMB397.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing an increase of 1593.0%. Revenue from sales
of fabrics decreased from approximately RMB227.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB119.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease
of 47.2%. The gross profit margin of the Group’s products was
approximately 2.1%, representing an increase from gross loss margin
of approximately 0.02% from previous year. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the year decreased significantly from loss
of approximately RMB369.3 million in 2018 to loss of approximately
RMB287.6 million in 2019, representing a decrease of approximately
22.1% as compared with the last year, which was mainly attributable
to the increase in sales turnover and gross profit margin generated
from the sales of shoes and clothes as well as the decrease in general
and administrative expenses resulted from less impairments made
during the Year.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2020, the unsolved Sino-U.S. economic and trade
frictions coupled with outbreak of the COVID-19 across the world, the
global economy is expected to remain sluggish with difficult operating
environment. The existing principal business of sales of fabrics
and yarns has been worsening as they are subject to unfavourable
macroeconomic environment and continuous unsatisfactory market
condition. It is also expected the outbreak of COVID-19 would reduce
the overall export of the shoes and clothes products to Asia in the
forthcoming year. Under such challenging circumstances, the Group
will explore any new business opportunities. Meanwhile, the Group
would continue to explore any new healthy and stable industry
through merger and acquisition and diversity its business in order to
enhance the Group's profitability and improve the financial position
and cash flow of the Group.

In 2019, the Company has completed the change of domicile from
the Cayman Islands to Bermuda and capital reorganisation. To
facilitate the financial restructuring, the Company has filed with the
Bermuda Court a winding up petition together with application for
appointment of provisional liquidators of the Company on a light
touch approach for restructuring purpose only. The joint provisional
liquidators (”JPLs"”) were appointed in Bermuda and recognised by
the High Court in Hong Kong. Whilst monitoring by the JPLs, the
Company is in progress on the discussions with the bonds creditors
any possible restructuring scheme, and target to complete the scheme
by the end of year 2020. The management will continue to strive
for more resources from the market and work hand-in-hand with
the stakeholders to support the Group in order to relieve the current
difficult position.
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Lastly, 1 would like to express my gratitude on behalf of the Board
to all our stakeholders for giving the Group their care, patience and
support over the years.

Moody Technology Holdings Limited
Wu Jianxiong

Chairman and Executive Director
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AR EH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB517.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 106.5%
as compared with revenue of RMB250.7 million in 2018, and loss
attributable to owners of the Company decreased from loss of
approximately RMB369.3 million in 2018 to loss of approximately
RMB287.6 million in 2019, representing a decrease in loss of
approximately 22.1% as compared with last year. The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to an increase in sales amounts in
shoes and clothes, which was commenced in the fourth quarter of
2018. The decrease in net loss attributable to owners of the Company
was mainly due to a decrease in impairment loss in trade receivables
for the Year.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

During the Year, the PRC economy was at the stage of structural
adjustment, showing increasing downward pressure. The growth
of GDP for the year was only 6.1%, compared with 6.6% in 2018.
According to statistics from the National Bureau of Statistics of the
PRC, the aggregate sales achieved by sizeable textile enterprises
amounted to RMB2,403.8 billion in 2019, representing a 1.8%
decrease year-on-year, with profit totalling RMB100.9 billion, down
by 10.9% year-on-year. The production volume of fabrics amounted
to 57.56 billion meters in 2019, representing a 12.4% decrease from
2018. According to data from PRC Customs, the textile products
amounted to approximately US$120.2 billion were exported from
China in 2019, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.9% with
the value of garments at US$151.4 billion, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 4.0%. Negatively affected by the Sino-U.S economic
and trade frictions, the Chinese textile industry faced more risks
and challenges. The U.S. tariffs on China’s products reduced export
volumes of textile products to the largest overseas market, and
demonstrated a slowing down production volume of textile products
in 2019. In terms of the raw materials, according to the data from
China Chamber of Commerce for Import and Export of Textile and
Apparel, the annual average price was approximately RMB14,212 per
ton, a year-on-year decrease of 10.5%. The average annual price of
the CotlookA index was US$77.83 cents per Ib, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 14.85%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstim K 7 47

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, the domestic cotton price witnessed significant decrease
with abundant supply and reduced demand affected by uncertainties
from the overseas markets under the Sino-U.S. economic and trade
frictions, the sales volume and selling price of China's textile products
both decreased accordingly and further narrowing down the gross
profit margin of textile products of the Group. As the textile industry
has been worsening in past few years, the Group has changed the
nature of textile products from cotton textile to chemical fiber textile.
Revenue of the Group mainly comprises sales of clothes and shoes, as
well as sales of grey and dyed garment fabrics.

The Group's production capacities of fabrics were similar to the last
year's level whereas the utilisation rate decreased given the decreasing
of sales volume. The average selling price of fabrics decreased by
approximately 3.5% to RMB5.7 per meter (2018: RMB5.9 per meter)
when compared with the last year. The average unit cost of fabrics
slightly increase from RMB5.9 per meter for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB6.0 per meter representing an increase of
1.7% for the year ended 31 December 2019. The overall gross profit
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately 2.1%,
compare with gross loss margin 0.02% in 2018 because the sales of
shoes and clothes representing 76.9% of the Group’s total revenue
contributed profit margin of approximately 4.4%, despite the gross
loss generated from the sales of fabrics of approximately 5.5% during
the year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by 106.5% from approximately
RMB250.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB517.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Such increase in the revenue was mainly due to increase in sales
volume of shoes and clothes during the year. Decrease in the revenue
of our fabric products was primarily due to decline in the sales volume
and the average selling price from around RMB5.9 per meter in 2018
to RMB5.7 per meter in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE Bt & 747

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s revenue
categorised by products during the year:

TREJIAKERANFEIRE RN B YR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

% to total % to total
2019 revenue 2018 revenue
g et g
—E-NF Aok Z—ZZE-—N\F EXaNsd
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Shoes and clothes ERKRE 397,806 76.8 23,497 9.4
Fabrics [EE 119,859 23.2 227,163 90.6
Total FEEY 517,665 100.0 250,660 100.0
Cost of sales HE KA

The Group's cost of sales increased by 102.1% from approximately
RMB250.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB506.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Such increase in cost of sales was in line with the increased
turnover during the year.

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales
categorised by products during the year:

BE_Z-NWF+_A=+—HILEE K&EH
HEXAHEBEE—E—N\F+_A=+—H1
FENARE25078ETEIN102.1%E 4 A
R¥506.6 88T SHEM ARG INEARF[F &
BN —H e

TREINAEERAFREREmRDBNHEK
ZNEEEE

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-A=t+—-HLEE

% to total % to total
2019 cost of sales 2018  cost of sales
B E haHeE
—E-hE RAESE —ETN\FE KAESH
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Shoes and clothes ERKRE 380,250 75.1 20,131 8.0
Fabrics [E 126,396 24.9 230,590 92.0
Total HBEr 506,646 100.0 250,721 100.0
B ERAGERA A 9
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Gross profit/(loss)
The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s gross profit/
(loss) categorised by products during the year:

EH, (E8R)
TERBIIARERAFERERDBOERH/
(E48) 84 -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLEE

Gross Gross
profit/(loss) profit/(loss)
2019 margin 2018 margin
£/ EFl/
—E-h¥E (BR)E =—Z-N\F (EB)%
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Shoes and clothes R RE 17,556 4.4% 3,366 14.3%
Fabrics mE# (6,537) (5.5%) (3,427) (1.5%)
Total mEt 11,019 2.1% (61) (0.0%)

The change from gross loss of approximately RMB61,000,
representing gross loss margin of 0.02% to gross profit of RMB11.0
million, representing gross profit margin of 2.1% for the year ended
31 December 2019, was mainly because the shoes and clothes
contributed approximately 76.8% of the Group's revenue during the
year. The gross profits of the shoes and clothes decreased from 14.3%
in 2018 to 4.4% in 2019 mainly because the Group outsourced
certain logistics works in order to boost the sales turnover for the
year. The gross loss margin of fabrics products increased from 1.5%
in 2018 to 5.5% in 2019 was mainly because of decrease in average
selling price from around RMB5.9 per meter in 2018 to RMB5.7 per
meter in 2019, while the average cost slightly increased from RMB5.9
per meter in 2018 to RMB6.0 per meter in 2019.

Selling and distribution expenses

The increase in selling and distribution expenses by 181.4% from
approximately RMB2.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to approximately RMB8.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 as the transportation charges increased in line with the exports
sales of shoes and clothes during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE Bt & 747

General and administrative expenses

The significant decrease in general and administrative expenses by
33.4% from approximately RMB223.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately RMB148.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was mainly due to less impairments made
during the year. Provision of RMB55.2 million based on the provision
policies for trade receivable of the Group, being provision for long
outstanding with no settlement up to the date of this annual report.

Other income

Decrease in other income by 81.1% from approximately RMB30.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB5.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 was mainly
due to decrease in reversal of impairment losses or prepayments
from approximately RMB10.9 million in 2018 to approximately
RMBO0.4 million in 2019, decrease in government grants received
from approximately RMB7.9 million in 2018 to approximately RMBO0.6
million in 2019 and decrease in net foreign exchange gains from
approximately RMB7.9 million in 2018 to approximately RMB9.2
million net foreign exchange losses which was recognised in general
and administrative expenses in 2019.

Finance costs

The increase in finance costs by 43.3% from approximately RMB103.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB147.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 was mainly
due to increase in the average balance of borrowings and interest
expenses in order to meet our needs of working capital.

Share of loss of investment accounted for using
equity method

By application of equity method, the Group incurred a share of loss
of investment in an associate of approximately RMB70.6 million was
mainly due to suspension of production during the year ended 31
December 2018 and the associate recorded the impairment losses
of asset approximately RMB184,856,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018. The Group's share of carrying amount of interest
was fully impaired and hence there was no such item for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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Income tax credit/(expense)

No provision for both Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise
Income Tax were provided because there are no assessable profits for
the subsidiaries in both Hong Kong and PRC.

Cash flows

During the year, the Group funded its working capital and other
capital requirements principally by cash generated from our financing
activities.

Liquidities and financial resources

Our primary uses of cash are to satisfy our working capital needs and
our capital expenditure needs. Since our establishment, our working
capital needs and capital expenditure requirements have been
principally financed through a combination of shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operations, and borrowings.

The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial management policy.
In order to achieve better cost control and minimize the cost of funds,
the Group's treasury activities and cash and cash equivalents are
generally deposited with certain financial institutions such as banks
denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

Net current assets and working capital
The following table sets forth the Group’s current ratio, quick ratio,
gearing ratio and debt to equity as at 31 December 2019 and 2018:

FreBiiEe, (Fx%)
HMRERERPEONE AR L EERTEN
WA EAFBNEHR LT EDEAEHA IR
o

RERE
FRAEENEEESREMESTREIRSE
BRETHELNRSEN-

RBESRHBEEIR
AMORSEEMNMRRMNEEELTS
RERHIBE - AADARIAKR  RMANE
EALREREAAAIBL —EXERBRR
R EEMBReRERESESSE-

AEEEDNEBERNOBES LY BEERK - REH
WIRHRARFAGEREEERA AEEHE
APMRE MRS EFEY —RERRRITES
TorR#E BRBORARE RBTFE.

RBEEFEREEES
TREFIFEER -_T-NFR-B—N\F+=
AZ+—AMRBLE P E ESAEL
=R EBBRALE:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2019 2018

—E-nE —TNF

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARET R AREEFTT

Current assets MENEE 120,765 146,798
Current liabilities mEaE 816,853 722,576
Net Current liabilities REAEFE (696,088) (575,778)
Current ratio B L 2 14.8% 20.32%
Quick ratio ERELLE 9.4% 16.07%
Gearing ratio EmBEL X N/A REHA N/A 73 3
Debt to equity ratio BRI A & N/A RiE A N/A 38 FB

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2019 Annual Report

12



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE Bt & 747

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's rights-of-use assets and
buildings, machinery and equipment with an aggregate net book
value of approximately RMB277.6 million were pledged to secure
banking facilities for purposes of working capital and purchases of
fixed assets for the Group (as at 31 December 2018: approximately
RMB301.1 million).

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the mainland China with most of
the revenue and expenditure transactions denominated and settled
in RMB, where its foreign exchange risk is limited. The Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk is mainly on its sales and purchase
transactions (i.e. export or import of products) in Hong Kong which
are mainly denominated in USD, and the bonds denominated in HKD.
The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is RMB.

Contingent liabilities

Save as those disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2019.

Significant investment, material acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies
The Group did not have any material investment, acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies during the year
2019.

‘ftzsA
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 24
December 2019, 17 January 2020, 23 January 2020 and 4 February
2020 in relation to, among other things, the placing of new ordinary
shares under general mandate. All the net proceeds have been
utilised for general working capital and costs for debt restructuring as
intended.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total workforce of 350 (as
at 31 December 2018: 420). New employees were recruited to cater
for the Group’s business expansion during the year. The Group offers
its staff competitive remuneration schemes. In addition, discretionary
bonuses and share options may also be granted to eligible staff based
on individual and Group’s performance. The Group is committed to
nurturing a learning and sharing culture in the organization. Heavy
emphasis is placed on the training and development of individual
staff and team building, as the Group’s success is dependent on
the contribution of all functional divisions comprising skilled and
motivated staff.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). As there is
no interim dividend payable during the year, there will be no dividend
distribution for the whole year of 2019.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2019 Annual Report

14

FERERE

ZIRMANRBSHA-T—HLFEF+-_A=-+M
R Z2-2F—A++tH ZZ2=ZFF— A
TR R-ZZE_EFE_AWNBHNRE RNEA
(AR EE)RE—REBELLENEBR -2
HFEHRBFECHAE—REEESRET
BEEHEZER-

ABDEIR

R-ZZTE—hF+_BA=+—HBH A&EBETAS
HI508 (R=ZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H:420
Z) HERENAENAEENFEANNER
Br-AEEREETREAGRE IO
Elopdh  ABERE I MAREBAARANEED
FIRERMIBICA LB IR - AEE BRI R AR
NEEBBESZE - AEBMKIIERBARK
HHARATRESHE THERA AR
BEE M AEESEEINEAEIRER
AR BIBRER -

B BB R
EFEERRTERIEBE_FT—NE+=A
=t BLEFEREEAREBRE (ZF N
FoE) BRFALEBERRPTHRE W _F
—NFEFHIERETARE -
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company'’s shares
by the Company or its subsidiaries during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as those disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any significant events after the
report period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance. The manner in which the principles and code provisions
in the CG Code are applied and implemented during the year ended
31 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report (the
“Period”) is explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company acknowledges
the important role of its Board in providing effective leadership and
direction to its business, and ensuring transparency and accountability
of its operations.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the
Period save for code provision A.1.8.

Code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code stipulates that the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors. Currently, the Company does not consider
necessary to have insurance cover for legal action against its Directors
and will monitor any changes to the situation and make necessary
action. The Board believes with the current internal control system and
the close supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk of being
sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as Directors is
relatively low.

The Company will, from time to time, review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue to meet
the requirements of the CG Code.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company (the “Securities Dealing
Code”). The Company had made specific enquiry of all Directors
whether they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Period and all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the Period.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code by the
employees was noted by the Company during the Period.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of
the Group. The Board has delegated to the executive Directors and
senior management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference.

All Directors carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has throughout the Period met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, and
accounting or related financial management expertise. At all times
during the Period, the independent non-executive Directors represent
at least one-third of the Board.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. WU Jianxiong (Chairman)
Mr. LIN Guogin

Mr. WANG Zhiping

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHOW Yun Cheung

Mr. LIN Yugang

Mr. LIU Junting

A description of the biographies of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

The list of Directors is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to
time. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified
in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this annual report, the chairman of the Company,
Mr. Wu Jianxiong, leads the Board in the determination of the
strategy of the Group and in the achievement of its objectives. He
is responsible for organizing the business of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness and setting agenda but not involved in the day-to-day
business of the Group.

The Company at present does not have a Chief Executive Officer.
The duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer of daily
operation of the Group are carried out by the executive Directors
and they are accountable to the Board for financial and operational
performance of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the Company'’s Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include
any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-
election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the other
Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment and so that as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Any Director appointed pursuant to
Bye-law 83(2) shall not be taken into account in determining which
particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by
rotation.

The following Directors will retire by rotation and offer themselves for
re-election in the forthcoming AGM to be held on 25 August 2020:

Mr. Wu Jianxiong

The following Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy,
will be subject to election by shareholders in the forthcoming AGM to
be held on 25 August 2020.

Mr. Lin Guogin

Mr. Wang Zhiping

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung
Mr. Liu Junting
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company's articles of association.
Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be eligible for re-election and any Director appointed as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be eligible
for re-election. Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates
will be proposed and put forward to the Board by the Nomination
Committee.

Induction and Continuing Development of Directors
Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, as well as placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

Board Meetings

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Directors’ resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions or by
physical meetings during the Period. The Board is expected to meet
regularly and at least two times a year. The Directors have full access
to information on the Group and independent professional advice at
all times whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and

EFEeTHemATdmAREERRIEALE
BEMBRR UEHURSENEBONFE R

approve the Group's annual and interim results. During the year and FHEZE - RNFRLKEEAFHHEBPL RITALX
up to the date of this annual report, nine Board meetings were held ZEEZE@# SEENEFTSTLRLFRHYIW
and attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out as T :
follows:
Number of board
meetings attended/held
HE
Board member EEEHE BITESSTRIANH
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Wu Jianxiong (chairman) RIGHTE (ER) 9/9
Ms. Li Jia Yin FEFLL 1/9
Mr. Zhou Biao Bk E 1/9
Mr. Lin Qingxiong MBS A 2/9
Mr. Lin Guogin MREIHR % A 4/9
Mr. Wang Zhiping FEFEE 3/9
Independent non-executive directors BIYKHITES
Mr. Lin Yugang MRFMI % A 8/9
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung BEELAE 6/9
Mr. Liu Junting BTk A4 4/9

The Company has to comply with the CG Code provisions with regard
to the conduct of meetings, has annual meeting schedules and draft
agenda of each meeting made available to directors in advance and
serve notice of regular Board meetings to all directors at least 14
days before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is required to be given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information have to be sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
where necessary.

The Bye-laws contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
27 March 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Company also established a regulatory compliance
committee (the “Regulatory Compliance Committee”) on 26 February
2014.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three members who are all the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Junting, Mr. Lin
Yugang, and Mr. Chow Yun Cheung. Mr. Liu Junting is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung was appointed on 13 August 2019 and Mr.
Liu Junting was appointed on 23 October 2019.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board structure and composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors based on criteria such as
integrity, accomplishment, experience, professional and educational
background and time commitments.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The director nomination policy of Company aims to set out the
criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of directors
of the Company; ensure that the board (the “Board”) of directors
of the Company has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensure the Board
continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors
The criteria for selecting any candidate for directorship are set out as
follows:

o bringing an independent judgment and making constructive
recommendation on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
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° serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for Non-Executive Director) and other relevant Board
Committees, if invited;

° devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any Committee(s)
on which he or she serves so as to allow them to benefit
from his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation
in the Board;

o scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

o ensuring the Nomination Committees on which he or she serves
to perform their powers and functions conferred on them by the
Board; and

o conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an INED, his or her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject
to any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time
to time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider
whether he or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise for filling the
office of an INED with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Nomination process
(a) Appointment of New Director

24

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship. Where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of director at the general meeting.
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(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(c)

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

(iii) ~ The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with the
Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

Re-election of INED at General Meeting

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an INED at the general meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting:

(i)  the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

(i) if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, why the Board believes
the individual would still be able to devote sufficient time
to the Board;

(i) the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(iv)  how the individual contributes to diversity (including
gender diversity) of the Board.

(b) REERAE LEZHEE

(c)
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The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on the
structure, size and composition of the Board and this Policy and where
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs, to
comply with all applicable laws and regulations from time to time and
maintain good corporate governance practice.

On 27 March 2014, the Board adopted a board diversity policy which
aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All
Board appointments will be based on merit while taking into account
diversity including gender diversity. The Nomination Committee will
regularly review the measurable objectives to ensure its effectiveness
to achieve diversity on the Board. The following measurable objectives
have been set for implementing the board diversity policy:

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
working experience (outside of PRC);

o ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors;

o inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries; and

o inclusion of candidates for Board members with knowledge and
skills in different aspects.

As at the date of this annual report, the above objectives have been
achieved, 1 out of 6 members of the Board has overseas working
experience and 3 out of 6 members of the Board have accounting or
other professional qualifications.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year and up to the date of this annual report, three committee
meetings were held to review the structure and composition of the
Board and the re-election of the retiring Directors and attendance of
each member is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings

attended/held
Committee member ZEgRE HEBITEERE
Mr. Liu Junting (chairman) BT A (EFE) 173
Mr. Lin Yugang MRFMI % A4 3/3
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung AEEL A 2/3
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The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process
and criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates
for directorship of the Company. The Nomination Committee shall,
based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure (such
as appropriate experience, personal skills and time commitment etc.),
identify and recommend the proposed candidate to the Board for
approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the
new Directors more detailed information on the Group's businesses
and activities.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members who are all
the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lin Yugang,
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung and Mr. Liu Junting. Mr. Lin Yugang is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung was appointed on 13 August 2019 and Mr.
Liu Junting was appointed on 23 October 2019.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year and up to the date of this annual report, three committee
meetings were held to review and discuss the existing policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors, the remuneration
packages of both the executive and non- executive Directors and
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

YNEZESEFAETEEL R - RFARERE
AFRBBMETRITARZEGER AR R
RATHERESENHMERE URRTEER
FEMITEENHMNGFS S EREFE R0
T

Number of meetings

attended/held

HES

Committee member ZEBRE BTZEEERNRE
Mr. Lin Yugang (chairman) WEREE (EF) 3/3
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung BAEE LA 2/3
Mr. Liu Junting 2EsEAE 1/3

The Remuneration Committee confirms that the remuneration payable
to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under
their employment or service contracts as approved by the Board on
the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the senior management for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set
out below:

In the band of eS|

PN B emR BRNEEZHMHRTFHME
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Number of individuals

AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members who are the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Yun Cheung,
Mr. Lin Yugang and Mr. Liu Junting. Mr. Chow Yun Cheung is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung was appointed on 13 August 2019 and Mr.
Liu Junting was appointed on 23 October 2019.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting function, internal auditor
or external auditors before submission to the Board;

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors; and

o To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issues, and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year
up to the date of this annual report, three committee meetings were
held and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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During the meetings held in 2019 and the first quarter of 2020, the
Audit Committee had performed the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by
the external auditor regarding the final audit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “2019 Final Audit”);

(i)  reviewed the external auditor’s report of findings and audit
opinion in relation to the 2019 Final Audit for the year ended 31
December 2019;

(i)  reviewed the management accounts of the Group and the
Group's 2019 interim financial statements; and

(iv)  reviewed the financial report for the six months ended 30 June
2019.

The Audit Committee also noted internal control irregularity
identified in previous years and made recommendations to the Board.
Meanwhile, the Group is ongoing to locate an internal control advisor
to review the internal control system of the Group and conduct
remedies for any deficiencies identified as considered necessary in due
course.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditors.

Regulatory Compliance Committee

The Regulatory Compliance Committee comprises of two members,
namely Mr. Wu Jianxiong and Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry. Mr. Wu
Jianxiong is the chairman of the Regulatory Compliance Committee.

Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry was appointed on 7 November 2019.

The primary duties of the Regulatory Compliance Committee are
to ensure that the Group’s business operations and activities are in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, and the Regulatory
Compliance Committee directly reports to the Board.
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The Regulatory Compliance Committee shall meet at least once ayear. EEAMREZESTHEEZLBFRIT - XTH -FNR
During the year, three committee meetings were held to review and BRITZAZELEH  UBRFATRFTwIRE %5
discuss the compliance status of the existing business operations and & @ KEBETHEH FEMSAEEER (I
activities, with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Hong @A) W EE ARSI REZRABR - SKE KL E
Kong and the respective jurisdictions if applicable. Attendance of each ~ =& a0 T :
member is set out as follows:
Number of meetings
attended/held
HE
Committee member ZEEHE BITNEESEREE
Mr. Wu Jianxiong (Executive Director) REEERE (ITESE) 171
Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry (Financial Controller) A E A (B Ts 4R e 11

GOING CONCERN ISSUE

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB287,608,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2019, the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB698,088,000 and RMB759,788,000 respectively. Furthermore, as
at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
RMB143,642,000 and its bonds of approximately RMB425,603,000
are subject to renewal or to be fully repaid within the next twelve
months as disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on going
concern basis. These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
upon that the Group will be able to successfully negotiate and
agree with the creditors to renew or extend the existing borrowings
or complete debt and/or equity financing to meet its liabilities as
they fall due. Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements, to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS
The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive Directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Reports in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets and
with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis. The Group has developed its
systems of internal control and risk management. The internal control
system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and manage potential
risks and to safeguard assets of the Group.
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Certain internal control deficiencies were identified and reported to
the Board. The Group is ongoing to locate an internal control advisor
to review the internal control system of the Group, and conduct
remedies for any deficiencies identified on considered necessary in due
course.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited, amounted to approximately RMB794,000 in respect of the
annual audit service.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives letter every year from the independent auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the independent auditor to consider the scope
of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of
non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit Committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the independent auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry,
is a full-time employee of the Group. Please refer to his biographical
details as set out on page 37 of this annual report.

Rights of Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
special general meetings, and members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Act.
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Sending Enquiries to the Board and Procedures
for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’

Meetings
Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Contact Person:
Postal Address:

Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry, Company Secretary
20/F Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the company secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business stated above.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company continues to enhance communication and relationship with
its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
would be proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.

Al resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

CHANGES TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
Since the change of domicile with effect from 23 May 2019, the
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents have been
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Jianxiong ( R %) (“Mr. Wu"), aged 49, was appointed
as the independent non-executive Director on 29 March 2018 and
re-designated as executive director on 21 August 2018 and as
chairman on 11 April 2019. He graduated from South China Normal
University and majored in accounting computerization and human
resource management. During the period from 1988 to 2014, he was
responsible for the relevant departments and management in General
Administration of Quality Supervision. In 2004, he was the chairman
of Jianrong Daofu Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (BB E B EEE
BRAA]) .

Mr. Lin Guogin (#BI#k) (“Mr. Lin") has been appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 23 October 2019.
Mr Lin, aged 31, graduated from Wuyishan Vocational College. He
has extensive experience in assets management, corporate finance,
asset restructuring and securities investment. In 2011, he founded
Putian Xinxiang Trading Limited, which mainly engaged in sales of
timber, steel and construction materials, and acted as its general
manager. He established Fortune Asset Management HK Limited with
whom he acts as its director since August 2014. He also has been
appointed as a director of JIMC Capital HK Limited from August 2017
to October 2019.

Mr. Wang Zhiping (E&F) (“Mr. Wang”) has been appointed
as the Executive Director with effect from 7 November 2019. Mr.
Wang, aged 31, holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration.
In 2014, he established Xiamen Xunyi Network Technology Co. Ltd.
with whom he has taken the role of general manager since 2014.
He has extensive experience and resources in both e-commerce and
blockchain.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung ( EEE) (“Mr. Chow") has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 13 August 2019. Mr. Chow, aged 40, has over 12 years
of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Chow was an audit
manager at KPMG and was a vice president of corporate finance at
Chung Tai Printing (China) Co., Ltd. Since February 2018, Mr. Chow
has been a non-independent non-executive director of Industronics
Berhad, a company listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(stock code: 9393). With effective from 2 July 2020, Mr. Chow has
been appointed as the company secretary of China Creative Global
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1678). Mr. Chow was admitted as a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February 2005. Mr.
Chow obtained a bachelor of business administration degree from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in June 2001.

Mr. Lin Yugang (# M) (“Mr. Lin”), aged 51, graduated from
Sun Yat-Sen University with a bachelor's degree in management,
and completed the master’s program in accounting at the School
of Management of Sun Yat-Sen University in 2008. From 1987 to
2001, he served in the Department of International Business at
the Bank of China for a total of 14 years, where he was primarily
responsible for reviewing offshore letters of credit. Subsequently, he
became an industry expert and was the youngest director of a branch
in Zhongshan City. Mr. Lin was released from work for studying
in Sun Yat-Sen University during 2003, and subsequently resigned
from his position at the Bank of China and successfully founded
a number of companies. Currently, he works at 7 LU 3 FA% #E
HEEEABRAF (Zhongshan City Xunxiang Equity Investment
Management Company*), and also holds the positions of director and
financial controller at EERE (EBR)REFHFE AR QA (Chemeida
(Guangdong) Environmental Technology Limited*). Mr. Lin is a
banking and finance professional and an industry veteran in the field
of international trading.

Mr. Liu Junting (218 %) (“Mr Liu"), aged 30, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 23 October 2019. Mr. Liu graduated from Beijing Institute of
Technology in July 2013. He is currently the assistant manager of
Zhuhai Lvzhou Industrial Limited. Since 14 January 2020, Mr. Liu has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1676).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry (“Mr. Tse"), aged 35, has been appointed
as the financial controller and company secretary of the Group with
effect from 7 November 2019. Mr. Tse has extensive experience in
accounting, auditing and finance fields. Mr. Tse was the chief financial
officer and company secretary of China Yuanbang Property Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (Stock Code: BCD.SI) from April
2016 to May 2018. Mr. Tse obtained a bachelor’s degree of Business
Administration in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Hong Kong in 2007. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.
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EEEWRESE

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present
the annual report of the Company with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is engaged in sales of shoes and clothes in Asia and the
design, manufacturing and sales of fabrics in the People’s Republic of
China. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group is engaged in the sales of shoes and clothes, and
manufacturing and sale of fabrics and yarns. Business analysis of sales,
segment results, total assets and capital expenditure are set out in
note 8 to the accompanying financial statements.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Group's revenue mainly came from two main geographical areas,
the Mainland China and Korea. Geographical analysis of the Group
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For details of business review in relation to the development,
performance or position of the Company’s business, please refer to
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and
the environment. The Group understands that a better future depends
on everyone's participation and contribution. It has encouraged all
employees to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole.
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Thanks to its active engagement in the enhancement of management
measures and technology improvement, the Group incurred less unit
electricity consumption and expenses in production as compared to
that of last year. The Group also advocated conservation of resources
in office and encouraged employees to develop good habits, conserve
resources and energy to build a green and comfortable office
environment. The Group will issue a separate environmental, social
and governance report for the year ended 31 December 2019 in due
course with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As
at 31 December 2019, no reserve of the Company was available for
distribution (2018: Nil).

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donations during
the year (2018: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of and reasons for movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year under review are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 158 to 160 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights over shares of the
Company under the Company's Bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) or the
laws of Bermuda where the Company is incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"”) resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 14 November 2017. The Board appointed
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“Zhonghui”) with effect from 21
November 2017 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
PwC.

Zhonghui resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from
6 December 2018. The Board appointed WORLD LINK CPA Limited
(“Worldlink”) with effect from 7 December 2018 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Zhonghui.

Worldlink resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from
10 February 2020. The Board has appointed McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited (“McMillan Woods") with effect from 10 February
2020 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Worldlink.
McMillan Woods will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company on 25 August 2020.
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DIRECTORS S
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of RFERLEHEAREBHOARRESN T :
this report are as follows:

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Wu Jianxiong (Appointed as Chairman on 11 April 2019) RELEE(RZE—NLFNA+—H
BEERER)
Ms. Li Jia Yin (Resigned as Acting Chairlady on 11 April 2019) TEEZL (RZE—NLFWNA+—H
BAREERE)
Mr. Zhou Biao (Appointed as executive director BEEE(RZE—NLFNA+—H
on 11 April 2019 and resigned on 13 August 2019) BEZEERNTESER
RZTE—NFENAT=BET)
Mr. Lin Qingxiong (Resigned as executive director wExE (RZE-—hF+—AtAR
on 7 November 2019) BHOEHNTES)
Mr. Lin Guogin (Appointed as executive director MEKEE (RZE-hF+A=Z+=H
on 23 October 2019) BZERNTESR)
Mr. Wang Zhiping (Appointed as executive director FEFRE(RZZE-—NLF+—A+tH
on 7 November 2019) BEZERHITES)
Independent non-executive directors BYKHITES
Mr. Lin Yugang MR 5 A=
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung (Appointed on 13 August 2019) AEEEE (RZE-AFNA+=ZBEZE)
Mr. Liu Junting (Appointed on 23 October 2019) EErE(RZE-NF+HAZT=H
BEE)

The Company has received, from each of the independent ZARAFIEESRZBILIERNITEEIRIE LML
non-executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant 3. 1316 EHREBI M - AR RRBEE
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the S 3FHITEEHABI AL

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section EEZBEFEFHBHINIEERSRERE] —
headed "Directors and Senior Management”. ffi o
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Pursuant to Bye-law 84, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include any
Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-election.
Any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the other Directors
subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment and so that as between persons
who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot. None of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into by each of executive
directors as disclosed in the paragraph headed "Directors’ services
contracts” above, each of Mr. Wu lJianxiong, Mr. Lin Guogin and
Mr. Wang Zhiping is entitled to a monthly salary of HK$40,000,
HK$20,000 and HK$30,000, respectively. In addition, pursuant
to the above service contracts, each of them is also entitled to a
management bonus in respect of each financial year in such sum as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine aggregate amount
of management bonuses payable to all directors.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) for
the benefit of the Directors of the Company is currently in force and
was in force throughout the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors confirmation of his/her independence and the
Company considers that each of them to be independent based on
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the management on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to
the Board on the remuneration and other benefits paid by the
Company to the Directors by reference to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market rates. The
remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had an aggregate of 350
full-time employees (as at 31 December 2018: 420). Employee costs
including directors’ emoluments totalled RMB14.5 million for the year
of 2019 (2018: RMB19.1 million). The Group recruited and promoted
individual persons according to their strength and development
potential. The Group determined the remuneration packages of
all employees including the Directors with reference to individual
performance and current market salary scale.

The Group regularly reviews the emolument package of the existing
employees, considers increment of salaries and conducts some long
term incentive scheme when appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 14a to the
financial statements.

FH M BUR
AEBEENFMBRD B EEERBRER
B AE RSB -

FHERGLLEARARERE EARRR
ALBMHEKFEERAESERBAAFM
EEXNHOME RAMBRN -RAEESHMEE
HME R e TS RS MHMERE
EKF o

RZEBE—NF+=—A=+—8 A£BEHXHF350
HE2BEE (R_E—N\F+-A=+—8:
420%) ZE—NFHEEKA (815 E =Bl
TIEFAREUS4SEEL (ZZE—NF: AR
E191BET)  AEEREBEEAGEDRERE
NEBRREARE AEERBEEARREELEA
MBHEKTFETHERE (BREES) N
FBo
AEELEERZAGTREZFHGSE TEEE
BEREAFE IR —EREYETE -

EEMeFBHERYHHRRWE14a -

B RERAERAF
2019 FERE

43



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEgHREE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares of

the Company

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (not being a Director of the Company) had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who will, directly or indirectly, be interested in 5% or more of the
Company's issued share capital:

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest

REZHHNERKE
FERRRAQD2ARMD P HER

BREFFA R-F-—AEF-A=+—A" T
SIAE (EHADTES) HAREESRDE
el B XVE B2 B3 B 0 35 8 ) K A ) BB
% B 0B S SRR O AR - S
P BT 14 A 8 F159% 5 A B B BT R R
Bl

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of shares in the Company

hZAR A F R AE

BRER LB B, fEang R e BABES

Merit Lead Investments Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 24,281,000 shares 13.05%
(Long position)

ERHREER AR =R A (M) 24,281,0000% (41 2) 13.05%

Qiu Zhiping Beneficial owner (Note 2) 12,684,000 shares 6.82%
(Long position)

S 7554 ExEA A (H52) 12,684,0000% (17 &) 6.82%

Notes: Bt -

(1) Merit Lead Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is owned by Mr.
Lin Qingxiong.

(2)  Mr. Qiu Zhigiang is a former executive Director who has resigned from
the Company with effect from 17 April 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) known to the Directors, who as at
31 December 2019, had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEgHREE

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted the share option scheme on
27 March 2014, and such scheme has become effective on the
Listing Date (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge the contribution
of the eligible participants made to the Group. The Board may, at its
discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors), the
Company'’s subsidiaries, employees of the Group and other persons
the Board considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company (i.e.
100,000,000 shares), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules. The subscription price of a share
in respect of a particular option shall be not less than the highest of
(a) the official closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the
shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and ()
the nominal value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall remain
effective within a period of 10 years from that date.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, 50,000,000 share options and
50,000,000 share options were granted and exercised, respectively,
representing maximum number of shares to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme. For details of the share option scheme, please
refer to page 57 to 58 of the 2016 annual report and page 44 to 45
of the 2015 annual report, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEgHREE

Share options granted

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity. For the share options granted by the Company,
when they are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
other reserve will continue to be held in other reserve.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. No
contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's largest and five largest customers were 8% and 22% of the
Group's total sales respectively (2018: 14% and 41%). The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's largest and five largest suppliers
were 18% and 64% of the Group’s total purchases respectively
during the year under review (2018: 22% and 52%).

During the year, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (who to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest
in any of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEgHREE

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and continues to improve and regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The Group maintains a good
relationship with its customers. A customer complaint handling
mechanism is in place to receive, analyse and study complaints and
make recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality. The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or subsisted during the year under
review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions were incurred during the year ended 31
December 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, from the Listing Date and
up to the date of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company's issued share capital as
required under the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board intends to adopt a prudent dividend payment policy which
will base on the main factor of the Group's profitability for the year.
The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). As there is
no interim dividend payable during the year, there will be no dividend
distribution for the whole year at 2019.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company comprises the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the Regulatory
Compliance Committee as described from page 20 to 31 of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEgHREE

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he is neither engaged, nor
interested, in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
may compete with the Group’s business.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS BY THE

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Merit Lead Investments Limited, Mr. Lin Qingxiong, Mr. Qiu
Zhigiang and Mr. Cai Jinxu, being controlling shareholders of the
Company, has entered into a deed of non-competition on 27 March
2014 (the "Deed of Non-Competition”) so as to better safeguard the
Group from any potential competition and to formalise the principles
for the management of potential conflicts between them and to
enhance its corporate governance in connection with the listing of the
shares on the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to review
any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the Deed of
Non-Competition during the Period.

LITIGATION

Dismissal of winding up petition against the
Company

On 20 September 2019, the Company received a petition (the
"Petition”) from Su Dajie (the”Petitioner”) in the matter of the
Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Chapter 32, Laws of Hong Kong) filed in the High Court of The
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “High Court”) under
Companies Windingup Proceedings No. 283 of 2019 that the
Company may be wound up by the High Court. The Petitioner is the
holder of the 2% bond in the principal amount of HK$3,000,000
issued by the Company on 12 April 2018 and the 2.5% bond in
the principal amount of HK$3,005,530 issued by the Company on
13 April 2018 (collectively, the “Bonds”). Since then, the Company
entered into two repayment agreements with the Petitioner in relation
to the repayment under the Bonds. The Petitioner alleged that the
outstanding indebtedness owed by the Company to him up to 11
March 2019 was approximately HK$2,890,000.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEgHREE

The Company engaged professional parties to prepare the
documentations for a financial restructuring plan in respect of all
of the Company’s total indebtedness. To facilitate the Company’s
financial restructuring, on 10 October 2019, a winding up petition
together with an application for the appointment (the "JPL
Application”) of TANG Chung Wah and KAN Lap Kee of Shinewing
Specialist Advisory Services Limited and Edward Alexander Niles
Whittaker of R&H Services Limited be appointed as joint and several
provisional liquidators of the Company (together “JPLs”) on a light
touch approach for restructuring purpose was presented and filed
with the Supreme Court of Bermuda (the “Bermuda Court”) by the
Company's Bermuda Counsel, Conyers Dill & Pearman at the request
of the Company.

On 24 October 2019, the Bermuda Court made the orders as sought
by the Company under the JPL Application, inter alia, TANG Chung
Wah and KAN Lap Kee of Shinewing Specialist Advisory Services
Limited and Edward Alexander Niles Whittaker of R&H Services
Limited be appointed as joint and several provisional liquidators of the
Company on a light touch approach for restructuring purpose and
following the appointment of the JPLs pursuant to the Bermuda Court
Order, the JPLs informed the Company that the JPLs intend to seek
their appointment to be recognized by the High Court in Hong Kong.

On 24 January 2020, the High Court in Hong Kong granted an order
to, inter alia, recognize the appointment of the JPLs and that so
long as the Company remains in provisional liquidation in Bermuda,
no action or proceeding shall be proceeded with or commenced
against the Company or its assets or affairs, or its property within the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Court, except with leave of the High
Court of Hong Kong and subject to such terms as the Hong Kong
Court may impose.

The joint application of the Petitioner and the Company by way of the
consent summons, an order was made by the High Court on 5 March
2020 that the Petition be dismissed. Whilst the Petition was dismissed,
the winding petition for restructuring purpose in Bermuda will still
continue to facilitate the debt restructuring.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR E

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

To the members of Moody Technology Holdings Limited

(Joint and Provisional liquidator appointed for restructuring purpose)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Moody Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 157, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion,
the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B B AT R &

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group incurred a loss of approximately
RMB287,608,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019, and as
at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of approximately RMB696,088,000 and RMB759,788,000,
respectively. Furthermore, as at 31 December 2019, the Group's
bank borrowings of approximately RMB143,642,000 and its bonds
of approximately RMB425,603,000 are subject to renewal or to be
fully repaid within the next twelve months as disclosed in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon that the Group
will be able to successfully negotiate and agree with the creditors to
renew or extend the existing borrowings or complete debt financing
to meet its liabilities as they fall due in the foreseeable future. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that
would result from the failure to meet in full its financial obligations in
the foreseeable future. We consider that the material uncertainty has
been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
However, in view of the extent of the uncertainty relating to the
continued support of the Group’s bankers and bondholders, we
disclaim our opinion in respect of the material uncertainty relating to
the going concern basis.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B % B AT R &

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") and to issue an auditor’s report.
However, because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chi Kong

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P07348

3/F., Winbase Centre,
208 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 7 July 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EHERRAEMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
F - NFF A= —HILFE

2019
—E-NE

Note RMB’'000
Bt & AR% T

Revenue g 9 517,665 250,660
Cost of sales 5 A (506,646) (250,721)
Gross profit/(loss) ERN(F8) 11,019 61)
Other income HithUg A 10 5,773 30,584
Selling and distribution costs §HE Mo SHAK AN (8,178) (2,906)
General and administrative expenses — R MITHFEX (148,761) (223,322)
Loss from operations EEEE (140,147) (195,705)
Finance costs BE KA 11 (147,880) (103,220)
Impairment losses of goodwill of R—RHEE QR ZIRED

investment in an associate SRR St (909)
Share of losses of an associate oE— B & QR EE (70,597)
Loss before tax MRBLATEE (288,027) (370,431)
Income tax credit TSR e 12 419 1,150
Loss and total comprehensive income EATHEBEAEEFAER

for the year attributable to REEWKWHAE

the owners of the Company 13 (287,608) (369,281)

(Restated)
(BE5)

Loss per share BREER
Basic (RMB) AR (AEE) 16(a) (1.55) (2.16)
Diluted (RMB) e (AR®) 16(b) (1.55) (2.16)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& OF B 351k R R

At 31 December 2019
R-FE-—NFfT-H=+—H

2019 2018
—2-nE —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTIT

Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB MR 17 318,488 373,734
Leasehold land and land use right THE L R s A4 18 - 22,665
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 21,203 -
Investment in an associate R—EBEARINEE 19(a) - -
339,691 396,399
Current assets REEE
Leasehold land and land use right THE L R s A4 18 - 558
Inventories 58 20 43,861 30,707
Trade and other receivables g5 Kk H W GIE 21 72,345 114,119
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS R 22 4,559 1,414
120,765 146,798
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b AT 5RIE 23 247,608 187,595
Borrowings EB 24 569,245 530,489
Amount due to an associate AR L =l/NEIE /S 19(b) - 4,492
816,853 722,576
Net current liabilities REBEEFH (696,088) (575,778)
Total assets less current liabilities EERBERABAEE (356,397) (179,379)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & ff B % R i &

At 31 December 2019
RZE-NFFZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings B 24 389,981 278,660
Deferred income RIEWA 25 13,410 13,722
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEARE 26 - 419
403,391 292,801
Net liabilities BEFH (759,788) (472,180)
Equity i
Share capital [N 27 1,505 150,493
Reserves & 28 (761,293) (622,673)
Total deficit & Al 48 2R (759,788) (472,180)
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson 7 July RZ-ZE-—TF+ A+t AEEF S AEREET
2020. o
Wu Jianxiong Lin Guogin

REH MEIER

Director Director

EE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EOHEREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B2 —F—NFF+=-A=+—HIFE

Share Share  Contributed Capital Statutory  Accumulated

capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses
B KB EE BB EAfHE EERE ZitE#
(note28(a)  (note28(a))  (note 28 (b))  (note 28/(c))

(MaE28@)  (BiaE2s@) (b)) 28(0))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT . AREFT AREFT A ARETFT

At 1 January 2018 R=E-\¥—A—H 124,010 500,745 - 113,510 24,151 (891,448) (129,032)

Issue of shares (note 27(a)) STRG (MF27() 26,483 (350) = - . = 26,133
Loss and total comprehensive income FRERRZANRGLR

for the year - - - - - (369,281) (369,281)

Changes in equity for the year FRERED 26,483 (350) - - - (369,281) (343,148)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=F-BRk

—Z-NE-F-H 150,493 500,395 - 113,510 4151 (1,260,729) (472,180)

Capital reorganisation (note 27(b) and 28(a)  RAZE 4 (H727(0)[:28(a)) (148,988) (500,395) 649,383 - - - -
Loss and total comprehensive income ERBERZEANEEE

for the year - - - - - (287,608) (287,608)

Changes in equity for the year FRERED (148,988) (500,395) 649,383 - - (287,608) (287,608)

At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZA=t-H 1,505 - 649,383 113,510 24,151 (1,548,337) (759,788)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
F - NFF A= —HILFE

2019 2018
—B-NF

—T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARETIT

Cash flows from operating activities RETHBHRETRE

Loss before tax B B BB 18 (288,027) (370,431)
Adjustments for: BT SBEEL AR
Amortisation of deferred income I A IR A 5 5 (312) (3.515)
Amortisation of leasehold land HELH R
and land use right Tb s AR B - 558
Depreciation of property, plant and W REREEITE
equipment 31,012 34,768
Impairment losses of goodwill of R—EBEARINEE
investment in an associate HMEEREEE - 909
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 558 N
Impairment losses of property, e
plant and equipment 2 REEE 25,428 -
Impairment losses of right-of-use assets ERAEEE REEE 1,462 -
Impairment losses of inventories FEZREEE - 7,373
Impairment losses of other receivables H fth FE YR IE 2 R B B 18 26,689 2,825
Impairment losses of trade receivables H 5 WA 2 REEE 55,152 176,546
Finance costs BhE PR AR 147,880 103,220
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant HEWE- - BER
and equipment =il (=) BB (229) 109
Interest income FEWBA 4) (6)
Reversal of impairment losses B RRIB 2 FEEERE L
of prepayments (407) (10,921)
Share of losses of an associate oG — R E AR EE - 70,597
Operating (loss)/profit before working EEBERNEHLE
capital changes (E8) &7 (798) 12,032
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEgm,md (13,154) 14,133
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N EH b FE Y ERIE S BN (39,660) (56,149)
Decrease in amount due from G il /N B E]
an associate B - 7,290
Increase in trade and other payables H 5 R E M EMRIE
0 41,174 12,738
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to an FE At — e Bt & A B Fk08
associate CRLA) /3 m (4,492) 4,492
Net cash used in operating activities KRETEHMARSFE (16,930) (5,464)

MR EROERAF
2019 FFEHR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS & ffR&RE &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

2019 2018
—2-nE —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTIT

Cash flow from investing activities REZHBRETRE

Acquisition of subsidiaries g AN EEPNG] 34(a) - (595)

Purchases of items of property, plant and HBEWE WEKL

equipment Bl (1,403) (12,531)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment B{RIECE e 438 292

Interest received 2 U FE 4 6
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFARSFE (961) (12,828)
Cash flow from financing activities RMETHRERERE

Borrowings raised BEEX 53,099 265,756

Repayment of borrowings BEEX (12,498) (241,465)

Interest paid B F B (19,565) (31,972)

Proceeds from issue of shares BITRD 1S RIR - 26,133
Net cash from financing activities METEFEHESTE 21,036 18,452
Net increase in cash and RERESEEYEMFEHE

cash equivalents 3,145 160
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HZHRER

1 January REZEY 1,414 1,254
Cash and cash equivalents at R+ZA=+—BzH%

31 December EBREEEY 4,559 1,414

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BRERBSEEYIH
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITHE S 22 4,559 1,414
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Moody Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
on 29 April 2013. On 23 May 2019, the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) has been de-registered in
the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda (the “Change
of Domicile”). The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
located at 20/F, Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) since 25 April 2014 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Winding-up petition and appointment of the
joint and several provisional liquidators for

restructuring purpose

On 20 September 2019, the Company received a petition (the
“Petition”) from Su Dajie (the “Petitioner”), a holder of the 2%
bond and 2.5% bond in the principal amount of approximately
HK$3,000,000 and HK$3,006,000 issued by the Company on
12 April 2018 and 13 April 2018 (collectively, the “Bonds”)
respectively, in the matter of the Companies (Winding Up
and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32, Laws of
Hong Kong) filed in the High Court of The Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “High Court”) under Companies
Winding-up Proceedings No. 283 of 2019, alleged that the
outstanding indebtedness owed by the Company to him up to
11 March 2019 was approximately HK$2,890,000. The winding
up petition was heard before the High Court on 20 November
2019. In connection with the Petition, the Company has
engaged professional parties to work out a restructuring plan
for the Company’s indebtedness. Such restructuring plan had
been filed to the Supreme-Court of Bermuda (the “Bermuda
Court").

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
F - NFF A= —HILFE

ARIEHR

MR RO BR AR ([ARAR])RZE
—=FWOAZTNBERBEHAESHEEMZE
REARRE) (—NAR—FEBIRERE
etk ERESRHESTMA L AE
ReBARAA -R-_E—AFRA-+=
A ARArESEe ([E5g)EXHESE
SHEAM EmMBEERELZENREHE
EFNEBERBERRARFAE ([FE UG
2] ) - EiFfMit =gl & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda AR AIRBEAEN T B L%
BN E A LIREEHE R 1995 B R iR
EH20E - AR ekt E = — M4 M A
TTHRAREEABERSIFIBR AR
(M2 pr)) R Em ([ EW]) e

ADAR—FRARBAT - HHBD A
F00E BRGNS OIS RAN 35 -

BREFRUNEABNETZHE
REZEERBEA

RZZE—NAENA=-+H &~AFWIE
KE(TZ2BAD) (BEARFTRZ=ZE—N
FUA+ZHEITHARESEEL 3,000,000
BILHRREHFM AR R T — \F KN
B+=H%TH A2 %5 43,006,000 LAY
25%EH (U THEBIAESR]) ) B S
EBIE32E QR (8 KB RS0 1§61
mESHNTHRESEER ([H5%R])
RRXMEE ([2F]) BEZZ—NLFHE
283 AENERIEF BREZE_Z—NEF
ZA+—R ARBERMUOKREBRHEHL
2,890,000 L BB EFBER T —NF
+— A=+t AREEERETRM -HER
ME ARACEFEXEATHEBHAR
NREEHM S ERTE - EHEHTS
ERREBREGS R ([BREER]) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

60

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
Winding-up petition and appointment of the
joint and several provisional liquidators for

restructuring purpose (continued)

To facilitate the Company’s financial restructuring, on 10
October 2019, a winding up petition together with an
application for the appointment (the "JPL Application”) of
Tang Chung Wah and Kan Lap Kee of Shinewing Specialist
Advisory Services Limited and Edward Alexander Niles Whittaker
of R&H Services Limited respectively was appointed as joint
and several provisional liquidators of the Company (together
“JPLs") on a light touch approach for restructuring purpose was
presented and filed with the Bermuda Court by the Company’s
Bermuda Counsel, Conyers Dill & Pearman at the request of the
Company.

Under the JPL Application, the Company sought an order
from the Bermuda Court so that the board of directors of the
Company should under the monitoring of the JPLs, continue to
manage the Company's affairs in all respects and exercise the
powers conferred upon it by the Company’s Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws, provided always that, the JPLs should
have the power to seek such directions from the Bermuda
Court as the JPLs are advised are appropriate to maximize the
prospects of the financial restructuring being successful and to
provide a moratorium to avoid a disorderly insolvency liquidation
of the Company and its subsidiaries by any of the creditors who
have threatened to commence liquidation proceedings.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period on 5 March 2020,
upon the joint application of the Petitioner and the Company by
way of the consent summons, an order was made by the High
Court that the Petition be dismissed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB287,608,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December
2019, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately RMB696,088,000 and RMB759,788,000
respectively. Furthermore, as at 31 December 2019, the Group’s
bank borrowings of approximately RMB143,642,000 and its
bonds of approximately RMB425,603,000 are subject to renewal
or to be fully repaid within the next twelve months as disclosed
in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on
going concern basis. These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon that the Group will be able to successfully
negotiate and agree with the creditors to renew or extend
the existing borrowings or complete debt financing to meet
its liabilities as they fall due. Should the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to the consolidated financial statements, to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HIFE

BFERKEEE
HE-_ZE—hAE+_A=+—RHILt&EE"
AEBMESEBEHARE287,608,0007T
MR—ZE—hF+_A=+—H0 &x&H
SRAERDEABEFELABFENARE
696,088,0007T & A R #759,788,0007T ° It
R ZBE-AE+ZA=+—H KEH
N R #143,642,000 R ITIERE L
AR 425,603,000t EHBEE LR
KRF+=—EAAANBEEN (BERE
HIRERME24) - WERARTIFEERT
HERZ AU AEENFELCLEREN
BREKRSEE B AEBJREEENH
BEKBEEPEREEENEEAE-

ARBEERR BRELLELERHES
HHBBERRIDAE LB - ZFAHMB R
RNOBRGEREEERE HAMEER
FARASEESRERAIBNER YRE
EENERRAET K EHRE N
mRBIMEER - MARBEBEEFELE
QARG HMBHRERIELBRBRAGEERE
BEMRZEATRESE  ARARE—FE
ERREFELEE LHERBEE NI
RBEEIRNEFIBRERDEENAY
BE-MFHABNFERRARRNA G
BHREA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

3.

62

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB"). IFRSs comprise International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”); International Accounting Standards (“IAS");
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 4 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16 Leases, and a
number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for IFRS 16, none of the developments have had a
material effect on how the Group's results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HIFE

4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs 4. BRAFITRKEBITERBERE
(Continued) ﬁﬂu (:%E)
(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs (a) FE R FTaT & 815 5T B B B 75 3R

(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16
introduced a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have an
impact or leases where the Group is the lessor. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from 1AS 17
substantially unchanged.

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect
that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as from 1 January
2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity as at 1 January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under IAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition options

applied are set out below:

(a) New definition of a lease

64

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. IFRS 16 defines a lease on
the basis of whether a customer controls the use of
an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in IFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the
Group has used the transitional practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously assessed
as leases under IAS 17 continue to be accounted
for as leases under IFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements continue
to be accounted for as executory contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact
IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by IAS 17. Instead,
the Group is required to capitalise all leases when
it is the lessee, including leases previously classified
as operating leases under IAS 17, other than those
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied the incremental borrowing rates of
the relevant group entities as at the date of initial
application.

To ease the transition to IFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients as at the date of initial application of
IFRS 16:

(i) elected not to apply the requirements of
IFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases for
which the remaining lease term ends within
12 months from the date of initial application
of IFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends on
or before 31 December 2019;

(i)  applied a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with a similar remaining terms for
similar class of underlying assets in a similar
economic environment. Specifically, discount
rate for certain leases of leasehold land and
land use right was determined on a portfolio
basis;

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

66

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(Continued)

(i) used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application
in determining the lease term for the Group’s
leases with extension options;

(iv)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets as at the date of initial
application; and

(v)  relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying IAS 37 as an alternative
to an impairment review.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies IAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs 4. BHRMHIIRZEITERBERE

(Continued) ﬁ EJJ (#8)
(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs (a) FE R FT T & &8 15 5T B B BA 7% 3R
(Continued) %LE—EJJ (:%E)
IFRS 16 Leases (continued) B BHREEREI6HEE
(%)
(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (b) Jfg)ﬁ/ﬁ B EERAETE
(Continued) ]
The following table reconciles the operating lease TRHEIMASIMEREZR =
commitments as disclosed in note 31 as at 31 ZE-NFT_A=+—RHZ&
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease EHEREERR T - NF—
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019: A—BwRZEEBERVA
R 8 AR
RMB’000
AREETF T
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 BRI EEHEAE 933
Less: commitments relating to B HREERNE 2 THEMERAGE
lease exempt from capitalisation:
— leases with remaining lease —FBHEAR T —NF
term ending on or before TZRA=+T—H3ZHl
31 December 2019 ERIES (933)

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 R-ZT—NF— A —H#ERZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

4. BRI REIETEBR KRS
% Al (@)

P& A 30 5T I AR A8 7T B BR B 75 3R

HER @

BRI BEEERE167HE

(%)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (b)

4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs (a)
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

AN EFT IR AR E

(Continued) (rzg)
The following table summaries the impacts of the
adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position:

™ R B B A B R B R
RIS 1658 B A K B & §F 1 H iR
MRHTE

Effects of

adoption of

IFRS 16

RaEn

B R

F165 28
Carrying Carrying
Line items in the consolidated statement amount as at amount as at
of financial position impacted 31 December 1 January
by the adoption of IFRS 16 2018  Reclassification 2019
FRGERRERE R=B-N\% RZZ-N§
RHZ6HHEN tZA=1-A -B-8
AHEERRENER MEEE ENSE WREE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it AREFT T ARETT

Assets B
Right-of-use assets fERREE - 23213 23223
Leasehold land and land use right RELHRLIERE (i 2323 (23,223) -
Note: Bz -
(i) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC i) RZZE-—NF+ZA=+-—

own used properties were classified as leasehold
land and land use right as at 31 December 2018.
Upon application of IFRS 16, the current and non-
current portion of leasehold land and land use right
amounting to RMB558,000 and RMB22,665,000
respectively were classified to right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(¢) Impact of the financial results and cash
flows of the Group

Under the recognition exemption and practical
expedients of the initial application of IFRS16, the
Group elected not to apply the requirements of IFRS
16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets for which the remaining
lease term ends within 12 months from the date
of initial application of IFRS 16, i.e. where the
lease term ends on or before 31 December 2019.
Therefore, the Group's results and cash flows had
no impact as compared to the results and cash flows
if IAS 17 had been applied during the year.

(b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2019. These new and
revised IFRSs include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business B[ B 75 &5 & R
EXLACCHIDES: T ot

Ra e ERE 15 R B 2 st ER
E8 (B ) EAMTEE

BUBR B IS RS 2RI E 5%  BIR & 7t
ZE BI| 553955 K B R B 75 3R &5 ZE Al

Amendments to IAS 1 and

IAS 8 Definition of Material
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and

IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & f Bf % 3R 3% fff &
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-F-NEF-A=+—HLEE

70

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(Continued)
(b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statement.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 6.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
(a) Consolidation (continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company'’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

#

5.

72

EE-NFF A= —HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

(b) Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(9]

Foreign currency translation

(@)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company's presentation currency

as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part

of the gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (upon application of IFRS 16 at 1 January
2019, the interest in leasehold land was reclassified
to "Right-of-use assets”, see note 4), held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold land Over the term of the lease
Buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Office equipment, furniture and vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available
for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

5.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Leases
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily laptops and
office furniture. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
(e) Leases (continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

(Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
(e) Leases (continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

(Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment properties
and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Policy prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the group. Leases which did not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group were classified as operating
leases, except for the property held under operating
leases that would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property was classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
(e) Leases (continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Policy prior to 1 January 2019 (continued)

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets were recognised as property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was provided at rates
which wrote off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it was
likely the Group would obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset. Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments were charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals were charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they were incurred.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they were
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

(f)

(9)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

(9)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

]

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

(n)

(o)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of manufactured products is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the buyer’s
specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the buyer
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when
on selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to
the buyer as this represents the point in time at which the
right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
(p) Employee benefits

()

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
(q) Borrowing costs

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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5.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
(S) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

(s)

(t)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is
related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Company or a parent of the
Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

(t) Related parties (continued)
(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
(u) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as
an expense through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
and other receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and
other receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group's
core operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i)  The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables
that meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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5.

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date determined based on historical trend, the
Group's understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL
are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

(v)

(w)

(%)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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926

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).

(a)

(®)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon that the Group will be able to successfully
negotiate and agree with the creditors to renew the
existing borrowings or complete debt financing to meet its
liabilities as they fall due in the foreseeable future. Details
are explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9
does not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

During the year, income tax of approximately
RMB419,000 (2018: RMB1,150,000) was credited to
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB318,488,000 (2018: RMB373,734,000).
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6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

98

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the impairment test.

During the year, impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB25,428,000 (2018: Nil) and RMB1,462,000 (2018:
Nil) respectively were made during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Impairment of investment in an associate

The Group’s management determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in an associate is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of losses of an associate”
and “impairment losses of goodwill of investment in an
associate” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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MR M fh 3R & & - R BRI 3k

EXINERFE-

aop o

RER DREHEE-T—NLF+=
A=+—HALFENYE HERE
EARFERAEEESRBENARE
25,428,000 (ZE—NF: &) R
AR 1,462,000 (ZZF— N\ F:
) o

(d) R—BEHE LA KE LB E

AEEEEENERESEHEERSE
BEEMNEEZE RBX—HEBEQ
AR E B RE - fir a0tk - A R E A
HRESE AEEQFNAKES
MEARmEMNEZR YREHER
FEMEERRSEER [DE - HBRERQ
AER] IR —EEERRNKRE
BEREBR] A - HfEITE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(d) Impairment of investment in an associate

(e)

(/]

(Continued)

No share of losses of an associate and impairment
losses of goodwill of investment in an associate (2018:
approximately RMB70,597,000 and RMB909,000
respectively) were made for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories
Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

No allowance for slow-moving inventories was
made for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB7,373,000).

Impairment loss for trade and other receivables
The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets based on the credit risk of trade receivables and
contract assets. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables is approximately RMB72,345,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB989,306,000) (2018: RMB114,119,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB907,872,000)).

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HIFE

6. EE¥HEHRFEMFTTw@

BT EEE ZETERR @
(d) R—BBEELTHKRELHEE

(e)

(f)

()
HE-_Z—-NAF+=ZA=1+—81
FE - BESSS G —MBE QA
EEERR—EBHEARNEKERE
BEEBEE(ZZE—N\F 23HAR
#70,597,0007T & A R #909,000
JL) e

i B

WHFEREDAGTEER RMEEA
BRFERELEFE -FEREEE
B RAE R fEET oM BRZERER
BRIRBERMGER ZEFEBRTEL
AR EHHREFEREE L E
R fEE -

BE-Z—AGF+-A=+—-8L
FE-BEARSHEHFERE (2T
— N\ : AR#%7,373,0007T) °

B 5 R A it & W 5 E B 1E IR

AEEEEERBEEZIREFEALS
MEBEEMEERR A58 5 EUHR
ERANEENBREEBENRE
BRTH - -REAREEBHERRA
BWREBRSE DEREAOE
NAKENFBAERNRERERAE
EEHEBROAARERE ZHNE
B(RVIEERAREENERM XA
B)FFE-MRFRSREENTEL
SEREERBRE(CT N QIR 6
HIREBBRREERE -

R-B—NE+=-_A=+—H 85
REMEBEWRFIENEREAENRSARKE
72,345,0007C (B REERBHEHAR
#989,306,0007T) (ZZE— \F: A
E#114,119,0007T (1 REEH
4 AR #907,872,0007T) ) °

B RERAERAF
2019 FERE

99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7.
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in the currencies other than functional
currencies of the Group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the exchange rate of HK$, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's loss before tax due to changes in
the value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z—I&F
+=ZB=+—HLEE

Bt 75 o B o R
AEBEgEEmRSECRAR 21
SNEE R - EE R R ED R R N A R
R AKBENEERREEDEINTA
BRANSRTS XEHEREHRNEEY
BREAMNBETNZE -

(a) MR
AEEEEE TMERR  BALL
DEBRD BERABAREER
) T B 55 8 LA 1 0 B M

AEBBEAYERINER F  BER
BEEINEL HEEK - AEEE )
B2 2R ELOME @B - I A% 8 B B B
B AHME ELF o

TRETHEZHHEBEETENEBER
T REBEERABEEZELME
YA ER B BRI A B IR i I RE
TEXNAEBEZCHERE -

Functional

currency
strengthened/ (Increase)/
(weakened) decrease in

by loss before tax

REE MR BRB AT R
(R55) (&), WD

% RMB’000

AR®ETTT

5%/(5%) (36,279)/36,279
(Note) (i)

Year ended 31 December 2018 Bz—_Z2—\#F
+ZA=+—HLFE

5%/(5%) (28,773)/28,773

(Note) (Ffi&E)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on
borrowings denominated in HK$.

1 00 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2019 Annual Report

BEE b T E 2 IR B TTAHES A IMNE R
=/ (BER) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7. BHEEREREw
(b) Credit risk (b) EERK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities of trade and
other receivables and bank balances. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

The Group has no concentration of credit risk.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 90 days from the date of billing.
Debtors with balances that are more than 30 days past
due are requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

FEERBEEXIHFRELIETS
BMTEXNEFEHMBAENEME U
BEXUBEENRR - 45K B g
%E@%%@(E%&H@ﬁ%*ﬁ
URRTHEB)EENEERR X
EEERRITHEBHEER ﬁ@'
TR 5 F BEBRE ;f?m%
%m%meﬁ%mﬁﬁ&i@%
B MAEERAEEREER

AEEYEBEREERR -

BEBBETEAESERBEEARNETF,E
ERBREEMNBE BFREERAR
T ERREFEERR -BMASHMA
BEERESBLETSRENEENE
PETEREER G - U h e
EPBEMIRNERLCEMRFHE
REEN  WERBEFHERE R
EFFMEREERFHBNER -E5
W HIERER A BHE AR F90RA
25 - i — iH%i‘xEH EER A
B HIERB30 RN W RIBZAZ BB
EHRE - ARE-—RYBEETFPES
W e

AHEBRERAERAQ T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & f Bf % 3R 3% fff &
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 7. BBEABREREw
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) %—EEL 28 (1)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables REBIZERNEERRAMNERE
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated EEENSEAEE SR BGIENE
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit BREE EREEEENERABESE
loss experience does not indicate significantly different T A - AR AEEBREEES
loss patterns for different customer segments, the BEATERBRTITRAERF 9
loss allowance based on past due status is not further TRBEE - B AR % 8 1F 5 B
distinguished between the Group's different customer MATENEEREBEEASETRAE
bases. FPEIEEE-—FES -

The following table provides information about the THREHEBAAEER_Z—NF
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade TZA=tT—HBFEHNEERR R
receivables as at 31 December 2019: EoRWHIEZEREEERE ﬁﬂ

2019
ZEB-hEF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance
HHEEE IREAAE EiEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000

% AR¥TRT AR¥T=R

Current (not past due) BVER (R HR) 56%-100% 3,617 2,022
Less than 3 months past due 81 HR > A3 1R A 70%-100% 9,908 6,938

Over 3 months but less than 60 BRER 316 A
6 months past due (EREY N P! 80%-100% 18,027 14,466

Over 6 months but less than #0 BRER 6 1R A
9 months past due 18> A 80%-100% 25,886 20,772
Over 9 months past due 8 EROfE A A E 100% 762,932 762,932
820,370 807,130

1 02 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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7.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) CrEdlt riSk (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

/E\ji%m@%ii(ﬂ)
(b) EERR =

2018
—E-)\F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance
TEHAE 18 & REAE a8
RMB'000 RMB'000

% ARETIT ARETT

Current (not past due) BNER (K@ Hf) 0% 27,668 =
Less than 3 months past due B 3ME A 36%-100% 10,854 5,799

Over 3 months but less than EHEE3ME A
6 months past due 1B >6fE A 36%-100% 12,424 12,424

Over 6 months but less than i B A A6 & A
9 months past due 1B >ofE A 36%-100% 18,029 14,896
Over 9 months past due 0 BROfE A LA £ 100% 718,859 718,859
787,834 751,978

The above expected loss rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the trade receivables.

LA TAEIE R R AE A RBRYK
I 2 $UR B e B AOR - B BT
MARAEEHE S EBKANTE
HA AEHSREBERNZBIANE
Ho

AHEBRNERAERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & f Bf % 3R 3% fff &
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

BEERER w
(b) EERK

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7.
(b) Credit risk (continued)

104

Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables

FRAEZRERABEREFZESD

during the year is as follows: ™
2019 PAONKS]
—E-hE —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
At 1 January n—H—H 751,978 575,432
Impairment losses recognised FRERRREEE
for the year 55,152 176,546
At 31 December R+-ZA=+—H 807,130 751,978

For other receivables, the Group recognises lifetime ECL
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the other receivables has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for the other receivables at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECL for other
receivables which has significant increase in the credit risk
as at 31 December 2019:

Other receivables H b W 30 I8

REMERHRENS  AEEEEE
B8 B R RERE KR IE IR R 2
HEHMEEEE - A WELEK
FIRHEE R B 16 R R I &KX
IR & - AN E AR E A+ — E A R
EEBEESNSETEHE MUK
HH)E R -

TREHABRANRERTEE R E
WHB(RZF-AF+_A=1+—
BOEERRBZEN ZEERR
;EHEEBRER:

2019
—E-NhEF
Gross
carrying
amount
fRE A ME
RMB’000
% AR®TR

Loss
allowance
EiEEE
RMB’000
AR® TR

Expected

loss rate

1%-51% 63,767 29,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea 7.

(b) CrEdlt riSk (Continued)

Other receivables H b pE W FRIE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

/E\ji%m@%ii(ﬂ)
(b) EERR =

2018
—E-)\F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance
TEHAE 18 & REAE a8
RMB'000 RMB'000

% ARETIT ARETT

1%-5% 75,185 2,825

The above expected loss rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the other receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance for other receivables
during the year is as follows:

FREREBRXRTEHE  ARRI
S SR MR e L EAMOR - B AT
LA Ko 7 62 18 S EL A I8 U SR IR B TR AR
FHEBRRZBENEZR -

FAHMBEWRRIBBEEREGZ SN
T

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETT

At 1 January n—H—H 2,825 -
Impairment losses recognised FRNEERBESE

for the year 26,689 2,825
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 29,514 2,825

AHEBRNERAERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & f Bf % 3R 3% fff &
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-F-NEF-A=+—HLEE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(9]

106

Interest rate risk
The Group's bonds bear interests at fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank borrowings. The bank borrowings bear interests at
variable rates that vary with the then prevailing market
condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of reporting period, its income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variable held constant, of the Group's loss before tax.

For the year ended

7.

Eji%’i“‘ﬁ%ii(ﬂ)

(0

A 2= 2 B
AEBZBEHFREEMNEGE QA
EERNTFENRER -

AEBAAEMNERRRIRERRTE
R RITERIRFB M KGR HEE
ERRITHRAMEMES -

B Lt & SN RERBR RS BRI &
HEAFEEERAE HAR
REBRSTREAHBD AEWIGH K

txe-

TREFE2HRMRERBTRY
FER T+ 74 o B 0 B AT A6 9 0 )
1A BB TE B AL A BB -

(ECEER
decrease in
loss before tax
Rt Al 5 18

(R ) (3gm) ®W
% RMB'000
ARETIT

Increase/
(decrease) in
interest rate

F=igm,

31 December 2019 +ZBA=+—HIL*F 1%/(1%) (2,336)/2,336
For the year ended HE_ZT—)\F
31 December 2018 +=—A=+—HIFE 1%/(1%) (2,337)/2,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
(d) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities
is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

B S R B B 2 )
(d) FE) M=

AEBBR AT REZENHRERHR
BESER UBREAFAERS
FEEAmEEERREMNRHES

Fxe

TRINTAREEREBER S REH
AEABABRERE (BEREOF
KA ER(NMAFBHFR)ZRER
MBI RFENF BN kA
SEABEFEERNRNEERBHFE
MRS HFHR-

AEEFNTESRHEBERANRYER
RanENIMBEROFTMAT:

On demand
or less than 1to2 2to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years
—£R —EWF MELF EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2019 “E-hE§
+=RA=+-H
Trade and other payables g5 REMENRE 236,958 - - - 236,958
Borrowings BR 581,411 170,699 212,761 103,225 1,068,096
31 December 2018 ZE-N\E
+=ZA=+—-H
Trade and other payables 5 REMENZE 178,316 = A = 178,316
Amount due to an associate JEIT—RIEE R AR 4,492 - - - 4,492
Borrowings B 629,488 74,119 249,815 169,073 1,122,495

M RERROBERQF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7. BRRBREE w
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 e) R+t-A=+—Hz&€®mIA
December 78

2019
—E-hE

2018
—E-N\F
RMB'000
AREFT

RMB’000
ARBT

ERMEE:

Financial assets:

108

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

WBERATENEREE

ERAME:
MBERAGENSRAE

52,052 109,969

1,196,184 991,957

(f) Fair values

(f)

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group

has two reportable segments as follows:

- Sales of shoes and clothes; and

- Sales of fabrics

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and

marketing strategies.

2019 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profit or loss do not include other income,
selling and distribution costs, general and administrative
expenses, finance costs, impairment losses of goodwill of
investment in an associate and share of losses of an associate.
Segment assets do not include investment in an associate and
bank and cash balances. Segment liabilities do not include
amount due to an associate, current and deferred tax liabilities

and borrowings.

Segment results
Year ended 31 December 2019:

Reportable revenue from external

R E S
BE-E-hE
TZA=t—HLFE:

KA SMBE P H) A] 2 M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

7 B E 0

REDHBNETRRESHMBHRRWE
STt 2 @t ERRER - DA R T ERE
WA SHER D HRA - — R R ITHF
XORERA R—HEBERARZRENRE
BREBELDE—HBERREE D
HEETBRER —RHBEQRNKE MR
ThkREeEHR-DHMEABTREEN R
fh & N R R BN MR ETR TR BB MR

f
N

Shoes and
clothes
HERRE
RMB’000
AR® TR

Total

st
RMB’000
AR TR

Fabrics

HH
RMB’000
AR®T 5

customers 119,859 397,806 517,665
Reportable segment (loss)/profit RI2WMH I (BE),EF (6,537) 17,556 11,019
Other income HaA 5,773
Selling and distribution costs SHE &y A A (8,178)
General and administrative expenses ~ — & M 1T B 2 (148,761)
Finance costs R E AR (147,880)
Loss before tax B T4 Al BT 18 (288,027)
Other segment items Hipsn BB A
Capital expenditure BEARX 1,403 - 1,403
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (£ REEETE 558 - 558
Depreciation of property, plantand %%  BE LR EHITE

equipment 31,012 - 31,012
Impairment losses BIEEE 108,731 - 108,731

AHEBRNERAERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 8. AHFER W

Shoes and
Fabrics clothes

EE  EREMRE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTE ARETE

Segment results PEEE
Year ended 31 December 2018: BE-=—N\H§
t=RA=+—-HLHFE:

Reportable revenue from external R EINERR P B A] 2 s

customers 227,163 23,497 250,660
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 2|0 (E518) = F (3,427) 3,366 61)
Other income H it Ug A 30,584
Selling and distribution costs SHE &y A A (2,906)
General and administrative expenses ~ — & M 1T B2 (223,322)
Finance costs BE KA (103,220)
Impairment losses of goodwill of R—HEE QR ZIRER

investment in an associate e EEE (909)
Share of losses of an associate o — [ E A F R EE (70,597)
Loss before tax FRELATES 1R (370,431)
Other segment items Hipsn BE A
Capital expenditure YNGR 12,531 - 12,531
Amortisation of leasehold land and & £ b Fo 4 Hb {5 F5 #E  64

land use right 558 - 558
Depreciation of property, plantand %% R LR HITE

equipment 34,768 - 34,768
Impairment losses B 1E 186,744 - 186,744
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 8. AHFER W

Shoes and
Fabrics clothes Total

HE HERRE Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTRT AR%®TR

Segment assets and liabilities PMEERERE
At 31 December 2019: R=ZZB—NIF
+=ZA=+—8:

Segment assets PEEE 444,516 11,381 455,897
Unallocated assets KOBLEE 4,559
Total assets EERE 460,456
Segment liabilities pani =R 261,018 - 261,018
Unallocated liabilities KoL aE 959,226
Total liabilities BEARE 1,220,244

Shoes and
Fabrics clothes

mHt EEMRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTIT ARETE

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE
At 31 December 2018: R=B-NF
t=-RA=+—-8:

Segment assets DEWEE 539,714 2,069 541,783
Unallocated assets KoL &EE 1,414
Total assets EEHME 543,197
Segment liabilities PEEME 201,317 - 201,317
Unallocated liabilities AOREE 814,060
Total liabilities BEAE 1,015,377

AHEBRNERAERAA
2019&@?2&% 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of
operations are detailed below:

TEHEHw

ith B &R

LS PRS- Eaalle 2204 Ivk- =2
mE

2019 2018

—E—hEF —E-NF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR® T AREETTT

The People’s republic of China (the “PRC") HrEE A R HFIE ([FE]) 119,859 216,101
Korea PR 328,676 23,497
Hong Kong aBB 952 11,062
The United States EH 38,142 -
Japan SN 21,358 -
Others Hb 8,678 -
517,665 250,660

Over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets (excluding
investment in an associate) are located in the PRC. Accordingly,
no further geographical information of non-current assets to be
disclosed.

Information about major customers

Customer A BEFEA

HBIBIONNAKEERBDEE (TRAER
—HBERARNKRE )N TE - AL 8
BIERBEENHMMIDER A THRE -

FERFHESR

2019
—E-NEF

RMB’000
ARBTT

PAONES)
—T-N\F
RMB'000
ARET T

35,159

b Revenue from this customer did not exceed 10% of total revenue
for the year. These amounts were shown for comparative
purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

9. REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregation of net amounts received
and receivable during the year. An analysis of the Group’s

revenue for the year is as follows:

Recognised at a point in time within the
scope of IFRS 15:

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

iy =
WaiEFAC W MEYCFER 2B NE
BEFARUE DTN

2019
—E-NF

2018
—T-N\F
RMB'000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARBT T

EBRPBREERF 155 BERN

KRR

Sales of fabrics RSNk 119,859 227,163
Sales of shoes and clothes HENMREHEE 397,806 23,497
517,665 250,660

10. OTHER INCOME 10. Hfilg A

2019
—E-hE

2018
—E-N\F
RMB'000
AREEFIT

RMB’000
ARBT

Amortisation of deferred income of B3 E FE G B8 A U 4 B IR AT
government grants relating to assets N ¥ici 312 3,515
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BER&ERE
plant and equipment 229 -
Government grants received BB E 625 7,900
Interest income F B U A 4 6
Net foreign exchange gains P& 5 W 3 e - 7,889
Processing fee income MI&IA 1,730 -
Reversal of impairment losses of TET TR 2R A E B R D
prepayments 407 10,921
Others H A 2,466 353
5,773 30,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. E R A

2019 PAONES)
—g-nE —T)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREET T

Interest expenses on bank borrowings HRITRERENEF X 20,052 21,077
Interest expenses on bonds BEH BT B FX 127,828 82,143
147,880 103,220
12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. RGBSR
2019
—E-hF
RMB’000
AR®BT T
Deferred tax B IE (419) (1,150)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC EIT are required R AEEREBEEZE_Z-—NLFTZH
since the Group has no assessable profit for the year ended 31 ST BLEFEITEERT RN - WHA
December 2019 (2018: Nil). HEENESHEPRECEMSTIELEE

(ZF—-NF:]&)-

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the loss e e RBRAIEENEENT
before tax is as follows:

2019 PAONES)
—2-nE T )\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFIT

Loss before tax bR AT E 1R (288,027) (370,431)
Notional tax on loss before tax, B ATRES 18 2 BEBIE

calculated at the rates applicable LEBAR B EERRY

in the tax jurisdictions concerned HAMETE (60,427) (75,650)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable TERBMWA R TNHEAS 2

and expenses that are not deductible M E 22,302 14,996
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBEERBZHEZE 11,187 11,141
Tax effect of impairment losses provision  JE{EE B R & 9 (h — B R ERIE

and share of losses of an associate ERIBEEMBZ ARIBEZH

for which no deferred tax assets was 8%

recognised 26,519 48,363
Income tax credit Frigtik e (419) (1,150)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 0t Bf # $R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF1-A=1—ALFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FREE
The Group's loss for the year is arrived at after charging/ AEBEHFAREBBLENER, (5T A) THE
(crediting) the following: BigisH:

2019 2018
= AN

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTIT

Auditor's remuneration 1% B A Er B 794 776
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 460,688 175,989
Amortisation of leasehold land and THE At Ko o b {5 A A £ 8
land use right - 558
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WERERETE
equipment 31,012 34,768
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ERAREENE 558 =
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) MEHEE, () F58 9,211 (7,889)
Impairment losses on property, plant and ~ #1% - BB k2B REEHE
equipment 25,428 -
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets £ REEEREEE 1,462 -
Impairment losses of inventories FEZRERIE - 7,373
Impairment losses of trade receivables g S eI IE 2 R EE A 55,152 176,546
Impairment losses of other receivables H b e W 518 2 R E 5 1E 26,689 2,825
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEYE HEX
plant and equipment miE () BB (229) 109
Minimum lease payments under operating B A EFTE LT ER
leases in respect of office premises REBEHE 2,599 3,040
Reversal of impairment losses of AR FIA 2 R ERERD - 55
prepayments, net (407) (10,921)
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRA (BRESEMNE) :
emoluments)
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances — %4 AIF N EBL 13,395 17,676
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — —:R4K4& Fll 51 2] 4 3 1,134 1,384
14,529 19,060
Note: Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and staff costs MizE: #% BERRETEARBEIRADHA
of approximately RMB30,844,000 and RMB8,412,000 (2018: R #30,844,0007T & A R #8,412,0007T
RMB33,126,000 and RMB10,517,000) were included in the cost (Z=—NF: AR%33,126,000t R AR
of sales. #10,517,0007T) B 5t ASHE AR o

AHEBRNERAERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & f Bf % 3R 3% fff &
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-F-NEF-A=+—HLEE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEFERREZR

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BABRE B R BMEDI £ 383(1)IEH 5& 1
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as EEMewT:
follows:

2019 2018
—2-nE —TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T

Fees e 321 313
Other emoluments H it Bl &
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe R EEYARE
in kind 742 1,570
Retirement benefit scheme IRIREFIF SR
contributions 41 82
783 1,652
1,104 1,965
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEE M R #%H @m)

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEME @

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total

Feo R BHRET

e BUEA R I

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ME  ARETT  ARETR ARETR

31 December 2019 —E-hE+ZHA=1-H
Executive directors HITEE
Ms. Li Jia Yin FESLL (i) - m 13 184
Mr. Lin Qingxiong BT & (i - 72 12 84
Mr. Wu Jianxiong REEEE (iii - 328 13 341
Mr. Zou Biao Pk (iv) - 70 3 73
Mr. Lin Guogin MBI % & ) - 53 - 53
Mr. Wang Zhiping FETEE (vi) - 48 - 48
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chan Sui Wa BmELE (vi) 103 - - 103
Mr. Lin Yugang MFR L& (vili) 94 - - 9%
Mr. Liu Shungang ZI)Em & (ix) 62 - - 62
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung FBERE (x) 53 - - 53
Mr. Liu Junting AEEEE (xi) 9 - - 9
321 742 M 1,104
31 December 2018 —E-\f+ZHA=t+-H
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Deng Qinghui HEBLE (i) - 93 11 104
Mr. Li Dongfan FRALE (i) - 103 2 105
Ms. Li Jia Yin FEFLLT (i) - 248 23 271
Mr. Lin Qingxiong WEHELE (ii) - 580 26 606
Mr. Qiu Zhigiang bt ¥ i (xiv) - 136 11 147
Mr. Su Yichao P bt (xv) - 77 1 78
Mr. Tao Tao mELE (xiil) = 103 2 105
Mr. Wu Jianxiong REEELE (i) - 9% 5 103
Mr. Yan Ximao BARKEE (xv) - 77 1 78
Mr. Yeung Wing Nam BKp Lt (xvi)) L 55 = 55
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chan Sui Wa BIRELE (vii) 103 = E 103
Mr. Lin Yugang MFREI%E (viii) 16 = 5 16
Mr. Liu Shungang 208 % & (ix) 104 - - 104
Mr. Lo Pak Ho ERELE (xvii) 7 N - 7
Mr. Ma Chongg SREAE (xvii) 18 - - 18
Mr. Tam On Yu, Alfred HKEFEE (xvii) 7 = - 7
Mr. Wu Jianxiong REpLE (i) 40 - - 40
Mr. Yu Yubin AR EE (xviii) 18 = - 18
313 1,570 82 1,965

AHEBRNERAERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

118

Notes:

(0}

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 29
March 2018 and resigned with effect from 11 April 2019.

Resigned as an executive director with effect 7 November
2019.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director
with effect from 29 March 2018 and re-designated from
an independent non-executive director to an executive
director with effect from 21 August 2018.

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 11
April 2019 and resigned with effect from 13 August 2019.

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 23
October 2019.

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 7
November 2019.

Resigned as an non-executive director with effect from 5
July 2019.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director with
effect from 21 August 2018.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director with
effect from 29 March 2018 and resigned with effect from
23 August 2019.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director with
effect from 13 August 2019.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2019 Annual Report

14. EETAIRER @

() EEME @
B3 -
) BB N\E=A-thARES
TARFTES YR _E—hEMA
+— BB

(i) BZE-NAF+—ALBEBENRT
B

(i) BZZ-—NFZAZtHhHEBEZE
REBUIFRTES IR \F
NRBZ+—EBBIIFRTEFRAE
RRTE=E-

vy BZZE-NFHAT-BREZER
BITEFE IR —_ZE-NFNANA+=
BEE-

v BIE-NFTAZT=EREZE
RRTE=S-

vy BZE-NFTr-ALBEREZER
WiTES-

(i) BZE-AFEATREEHEINT
B

(i) BZZE-N\FNA-+-HREZRE
REBUIERTES-

(x BZZ-N\FZAZtHhHBREZE
REBUIFRTES IR _FT—NF
NAZ+=HEHT-

x BZE-NAFNAAT=ZBREZER
B FAITESE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

Appointed as an independent non-executive director with
effect from 23 October 2019.

Resigned as an executive director with effect from 5 March
2018.

Appointed as executive directors with effect from 17 April
2018 and resigned with effect from 21 August 2018.

Resigned as an executive director with effect from 17 April
2018.

Appointed as executive directors with effect from 21
September 2018 and resigned with effect from 21
November 2018.

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 5
March 2018 and resigned with effect from 29 March
2018.

Appointed as independent non-executive directors with
effect from 5 March 2018 and resigned with effect from
29 March 2018.

Resigned as independent non-executive directors with
effect from 5 March 2018.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emolument during the year (2018:

Nil).

During the year, no emolument has been paid to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group; or as compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).

There was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any
of the directors during the year (2018: Nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HIFE

14. EETARER @

(a) EEME @

BHEE : (4)

) B-T—AFE+A-T-AERET

BB EMITES-

i) BT /\E=ATAERESNTE
%c
E-E—NFUAT+L-tHEERT
ABTEE TR -E—NENA

(xiii)

—+—HET-

(xiv) B-ZT—N\FWNA++tBEETNT
g%

xv) BZZE—NFLA-t+—BEREZXRT
BRTES TN _Z—N\FE+—A8
—+—H#T-

i)y BZE—-NFE=ARBRBEZEAH
TEE YR N\F=ZA=-t+h
HEHE -

i) BZE—NFE=ZFRAHREZTAS
VIHERTER IR - N\F=A
—thBAET-

(xvii) B -ZE— N\F=ZARHEFTBIE

HITESE-

RER BEEERRXFABRET
e s 2 (ZT—N\F: &)

REAR BENEAME TESF
ARSI AN 5= B 3 0 A R £R (81 B A
RERIERBEREE (ZF—\F:
&) e

RER BEMEAESE N REN
ERMBEL (ZT—NF &)

B RERAERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)
(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save for disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transaction, arrangement and
contract in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included two (2018: four) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2018: one) individual are set out below:

14. EETAIRER @

(b) EERNRZ THIEHNFHE
RHE R
A GHBH S SR I SEI3FT B 51
RO B A2 PO AE B D - A A
S B E 5 — 7y T R e B 2 75 A B
EAXXS RURANT AQAE
FREFHBATEERNERAE
KA o

15. EBREHFMA L
RER AEBTLSSTMATAERS
(ZE—\F WL EE HFEMRBRE
AGBITSBE M 14 M DT - K=
Z(ZE—N\GF —R)ALHNEMOT:

2019 2018

—E—-hfF —ZT—N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARET T

Salaries, bonuses and other benefits in kind & ~ JEAT K E fth = 448 1,337 969
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R K#@ #5243 23 15
1,360 984

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees, whose
emoluments fell within the following bands, is as follows:

FHN T T BENEEERa T AL
HHEMT:

2019 2018
—E—N\F

—E-hEF

Nil to RMB1,000,000 T x AR #1,000,0007T 3 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BIREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREAERE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the BRATBEDREBEATERE
following:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT

Loss for the year attributable to owners 5t & SR E AN EHBFTA 2
of the Company used in the basic RATRHER AEBIGERNER
loss per share calculation (287,608) (369,281)

Number of shares

Bt 8B
2019 2018

—B-RE  —T)\F
(Restated)
(&%)

Weighted average number of ordinary st & SREARNEIETAZ
shares in issue during the year used FARBEEITERBRME TR

in basic loss per share calculation 186,000,000 170,797,260
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREBEER
No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company did HRARARREBEE_ZE—NERZ
not have any dilutive potential ordinary share during the —N\FE+ZA=+T—HILREFEH
two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. EAEMEBTHSEER WEZ2YE

PE e iE -

For the purpose of calculation of basic and diluted loss per share A EEEZTE-NEER=_ZE-N\F+=
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the share AR=+—RLFEs8RERNREEEE
consolidation of the Company being effective on 19 June 2019 ME AR RZZT—NEASATNAE
(note 27(b)) was deemed to be effective throughout the period ERzIRGE G (BFE27(0)) BR AR =
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the ZT-NF—A—HEZZ—NLEF+=A
weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company in —+—HLEHEER-El REE=F
issue during the year ended 31 December 2018 were adjusted —NFE+ZA=+—HLEFE AREH
to reflect the share consolidation. ERTERRINETFAEEEARURE

FUETE

AHEBRNERAERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ - BERSEE

Office
Machinery  equipment,
and furniture and Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles in progress Total

WAZEE
REYN AEREE HERER  ERIE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARETT ARMTL ARETR

Cost B
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E—A—H 371,037 203,731 4,790 22,500 602,058
Additions RE - 6,510 120 5,901 12,531
Transfer B 26,919 - - (26,919) -
Disposals e - (3,835) (142) - (3,977)
At 31 December 2018 and RZT-N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—-8%

“E-N&—8—H 397,956 206,406 4,768 1,482 610,612
Additions hE - 1,367 - 36 1,403
Disposals HE - - (837) - (837)
At 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-NF

+=ZRA=+-H 397,956 207,773 3,931 1,518 611,178
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE
At 1 January 2018 R-E-\E—A—H 89,071 114,161 2,454 - 205,686
Charge for the year FAEH 15,934 17,192 1,642 - 34,768
Disposals e = (3,448) (128) - (3,576)
At 31 December 2018 and RZT-N\&

1 January 2019 TZA=+—-8k

“E-hF—-H—H 105,005 127,905 3,968 - 236,878
Charge for the year ERXH 18,136 12,708 168 - 31,012
Impairment losses HEEE 25,428 - - - 25,428
Disposals HE - = (628) - (628)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-NF

+=RA=+-H 148,569 140,613 3,508 - 292,690
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-NF

+=A=+-H 249,387 67,160 423 1,518 318,488
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F

+-A=+—H 292,951 78,501 800 1,482 373,734
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17.

18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
As at 31 December 2019, buildings of the Group with
carrying amount of approximately RMB233,968,000 (2018:
RMB250,431,000) and machinery and equipment of the Group
with carrying amount of approximately RMB22,409,000 (2018:
RMB27,447,000) were pledged as collateral for certain bank
borrowings of the Group (note 24).

As set out in note 36(d) to the consolidated financial
statements, certain land and buildings of the Group was sold to
a buyer in a public auction on 2 April 2020 at a consideration of
approximately RMB69,223,000 which is lower than the carrying
amount of the land and buildings. As a result, impairment losses
of buildings of approximately RMB25,428,000 (2018: Nil) was
recognised.

The Group has carried out a review of the recoverable amount
of its property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2019
with reference to the independent valuation performed by an
independent valuer, APAC Appraisals and Consulting Limited.
The recoverable amount is assessed based on fair value less
cost of disposal by using replacement cost basis under level
3 fair value measurement. Apart from land and buildings as
mentioned above, no further impairment loss is required for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil) as the recoverable
amount of the subject property, plant and equipment is higher
than and close to its carrying amount as at 31 December 2019.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHT/
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

17.

18.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

ME - BERSEE@®
R-E-—AE+-_A=Z+—HBH AEEFE
MmE Y AR233,968,0000T (—ZF— N\
F: ARM250,431,00070) I E W LA &
AEBEREEENHNAR22,409,0007T (=
T—\F: ANR¥E27,447,0007T ) HOH2E K
FEEMIPEAEES TRTE R
m (PfzE24) -

BWINA G IS SRR M E36(d)ATE - A K
BEETELHEEEVER S _ZF
BZHEMAHHEPUTEHARE
69,223,000t E TEF - ZEBEN L
HMEEYNEEE - Al EERESE
YR E B B 4 AR 25,428,000 (=&
—NFE:8|)o

AEBBL2EBUGEMDAZETHR
FERARAGETHELGHE EHER
—E-hF+_A=Z+—HHNDE BE
HEHAIRESE - J W E SR EASE
EHRAFEAETHEENAEE UQ
FERBEEXNNEFHE - ARE=ZZT—AN
F+ZA=+—H BEZVE BEEX
ERkEcEsREEOIEERE &
REEZE—NF+ZA=+—HL%F
& B EXXFrat 2 i BRI EAE
HE—FREEBB(ZE—N\F:&)-

HELHR T HERE FHE
BE

Leasehold

land and

land use right

HE L

ot h 55 I RE

RMB’000

AR TR

At 1 January 2018 RZFE-NF—H—H 23,781

Amortisation for the year F N (558)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-—NF+_A=1T—HRK

—T-hF—H—H 23,223
Reclassification due to adoption of IFRS 16 (R £ 4% B BR 1 3 3R 5 ZE R 551657

mEH 28| (23,223)

Restated balance at 1 January 2019

R-ZZB-NF-A—BLEIER -

B ERAERAD T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bf # 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

18. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHT/
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continuea)

Current portion T EDEB
Non-current portion FETRED:

18. HET R T AR AR

EEw

Leasehold
land and

land use right
HE i

Ko o b5k P A

2018
—E-N\F
RMB'000
AREEFIT

558
22,665

23,223

Leasehold land and land use right represent the net book
amount of prepaid operating lease payments. All land use right
is located in the PRC, the Group's leasehold land and land use
right with carrying amount of approximately RMB23,223,000
were pledged as collateral for certain bank borrowings of the
Group (note 24). Due to adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019,
the Group's leasehold land and land use right were reclassified
to right-of-use assets.

HETHE T HFERBEENSEHER
B FE - AL FEREMAPE
AEEKREENAARKE23,223,0007TH
METH R TMEAESERERERS
FRITEFHOEBR (MI5E24) - AR ZE
—NF—A—BRMOBIBRE B REERSE
165 AEBHEL R T HFRES
NoBEFRAREE-

Right-of-use

assets

FERAEEE

RMB’000

AR® T

At 1 January 2019 (note 3) RZFE—hE—HF—A8 (KM&E3) 23,223
Depreciation e (558)
Impairment RIE (1,462)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZEB-hE+=-HA=+—H 21,203

As at 31 December 2019, leasehold lands of the Group with
carrying amount of approximately RMB21,203,000 were
pledged as collateral for certain bank borrowings of the Group
(note 24).

1 24 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

18. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHT/

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continuea)

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets

Expenses relating to short-term lease
(included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses)

Impairment on right-of-use assets

EREEERE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

18. HELH R T EARE ERARE

EE @w

Right-of-use
assets
ERAEEE
2019

—E-hE
RMB’000
AR® T

FREEETERY 558
EHEEHHEENRY
(GTABERARITHAYL)

2,599
1,462

As set out in note 36(d) to the consolidated financial
statements, certain land and buildings of the Group was sold to
a buyer in a public auction on 2 April 2020 at a consideration of
approximately RMB69,223,000 which is lower than the carrying
amount of the land and buildings. As a result, impairment losses
of right-of-use assets of approximately RMB1,462,000 (2018:
Nil) was recognised.

The Group has carried out a review of the recoverable amount
of its right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2019 with reference
to the independent valuation performed by an independent
valuer, APAC Appraisals and Consulting Limited. The recoverable
amount is assessed based on fair value less cost of disposal
by using replacement cost basis under level 3 fair value
measurement. Apart from land and buildings as mentioned
above, no further impairment loss is required for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil) as the recoverable amount of the
subject right-of-use assets is higher than and close to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2019.

BANE SRR FE36(d)FTE A&
BETLHEEEPER T _TF N
BAZHHNAHAHEPUTEHARE
69,223,000 EFEF ZEBEN L
HREEYRREME At SEREAE
EERBERBEHNHAREK,462,000T (=ZF
—NF:|)o

AEEC2EFIUAEMERKEEN G R
BRERARARETHELGAE FHER
“E-NFT A=+ -BENEREEE
WAl E R AT REEEERE=RA
FEFETHNEEXNANEE  LAFER
HERKNEFGE - BHRE-_FT-AF+ =
A=+—RB BEEAREEMNAKREE
EENLEOAREE AERBE_F
—hF+-A=+—BILFE B EXAH
itz 30 MRS SN X EE — S REE
B(ZZ-N\F:8)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—REBELATWER
(a) Investment in an associate (a) R—HEEEQATRNKRE

2019 2018
—2-nE —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBT T

Unlisted investments: FELMIRE
Share of net assets SMEEEFE - =
Goodwilll EES 60,909 60,909
60,909 60,909
Impairment loss on goodwill e EEE (60,909) (60,909)
Share of net assets DIEEEFE - -
Details of the Group's associate at 31 December 2019 are rEBR_ZE—NF+ZHA=1T—AH
as follows: WEE RRFEERT
Percentage
Place of Issued and of ownership Principal activities
incorporation  paid up capital interest and place of operation
BEERER
AMEVEE ERTRBERE FiftEAE FEEXERSEHEY
Baixin (China) Co., Limited The PRC RMB100,000,000 50% Manufacturing and sales of yarn
BE (FE)BERAF H A E#100,000,0007T and cotton fabric, the PRC

RERHEYGRREL PE

The associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial ZEE N ARREAR G M B
statements using the equity method. The summarised RAR -BBERNBREDRERE D
financial information presented is based on the financial I BT &R 25 o

statements of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

19. R—EBELATNER @

Investment in an associate (continued) () A—EEEATINKRE @
2019
—E-hF
RMB’000
ARE T
At 31 December; R+-_A=+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE 100,883 168,812
Current assets REEE 54,959 45,420
Non-current liabilities FERBEaE (91,870) (92,258)
Current liabilities MENBE (145,821) (190,307)
Net liabilities BEFE (81,849) (68,333)
Group's share of carrying amount AEEEGEEREE
of interest — _
Year ended 31 December: HEt+t-_A=1+—HI=FE:
Revenue Wras 41,110 137,668
Loss and total comprehensive income A& 18 & & W25 2 58
for the year (13,517) (211,243)

No loss of the associate was shared (2018: approximately
RMB70,597,000) for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Group has not recognised loss for the year
amounting to approximately RMB6,759,000 (2018:
RMB35,024,000) for the associate. The accumulated
losses not recognised were approximately RMB41,783,000
(2018: RMB35,024,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances
of the Group's associate in the PRC denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately RMB34,000 (2018:
RMB815,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’'s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations.

Amount due to an associate
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

HE_Z—h&F+=-_A=+—81t
FE - BESEBEAAEBEER(ZZ
— N\F: 4 AR#¥70,597,0007T) °

KNEBAGZE SN FEREEEE
#ANER#6,759,0007T (—ZZF— \F:
AR #35,024,0007T) - R ERH R
sHEE Y A ARA41,783,0007T (=
T—N\F: AR#35024,0007T) °

RZEBE-NF+_A=+—H K&
BrhEEERAAAAREFEDN
RITRRSEHBLHARE34,0007T
—F—)\F: AR#¥815,0005T) °
BARERBAINEAES (RRIMNE
EHMED) BE -

w)EH—H%%
fﬁ*Fﬂ N
WRRENE

ARHKE
ARAREER %
= o

B ERAERAD T
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

20. INVENTORIES

2019 2018

—B-RE —ZN\F

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBT R AR T

Raw materials R 9,835 9,593
Work-in-progress £ &5 6,234 7.129
Finished goods BIPK 0 27,792 13,985
43,861 30,707

21. EZ R H M EWRIE

2019 PAONES)
—g-nE  —FF

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREETIT

Trade receivables (note (a)) S EWFIE (HiE@)) 820,370 787,834
Less: Allowance for trade receivables B E BRI R B
(note (a)) (FF3E@)) (807,130) (751,978)

13,240 35,856

SEE B R R R R ST Y

Prepayments to suppliers for purchase

of raw materials TEfF 3R IE 177,514 158,633
Less: Allowance for prepayments B TR FRIB Y B (152,662) (153,069)
24,852 5,564
Other receivables H b pE U FRIA 63,767 75,185
Less: Allowance for other receivables SR T EL b fE MR TE A B (29,514) (2,825)
34,253 72,360

Amount due from a former director JEU — B RMEE S FKIA
(note (b)) (M 3ED)) - 339
72,345 114,119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)
(a) Trade receivables

The Group's trading terms customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally 90 days (2018: 90 days). Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

2. ESREMEWFEIE @

(a) BE5ZEWKE
AEERESZEHEREBUEE
RS- EE S — MR ARI0A (=%
—ﬁ@awa%ﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ%%
EERE-RHMES M= BB
B 58 4 1 5k« ) A
RIEB PR - EE T HRMEA Y
K gh o

B 5 E (SRR REE
A @ AT :

2019 PAON RS}
—B-—hE —E)N\E

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Within 1 month REDER 1,595 15,274
Over 1 month but less than 3 months 11 A LA E{B DR - 12,394
Over 3 months but less than 6 months 31& A LA 1B 2,970 5,055
Over 6 months but less than 9 months  61& A LA {8 A FAof{E 3,561 -
Over 9 months but less than 12 months 91& A LA 1B 712 5114 3,133

13,240 35,856

As of 31 December 2019, trade receivables of
approximately RMB11,645,000 (2018: RMB8,189,000)
were past due but not impaired. These trade receivables
related to customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables, based on due date, is as follows:

RZE—NF+_A=Z=+—H EH
R R IE X A R¥11,645,0000T (=
Z— \F: AR¥S8,189,00070) 2 @
HERRE ZSE 5 ENGRIERT
Y EENCHNEFEH 258
SEWRIBBZI BB 2 BREE DT
T

2019 2018
—Z2-NF —TN\F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR T ARBETIT

Neither past due nor impaired R BTN ARORE 1,595 27,668
Less than 3 months past due w0 HR D HA31E A 2,970 5,055
Over 3 months but less than # HB31E A LA E18 > pefE A
6 months past due 3,561 -
Over 6 months but less than 70 B6ME B LA 18 D pAofE A
9 months past due 5,114 3,133
13,240 35,856
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)

(a)

(b)

130

Trade receivables (continued)
The Group does not charge interest or hold any collateral
over these balances.

The Group applied simplified approach to provide the ECL
as prescribed by IFRS 9. The impairment methodology is
set out in notes 5(v) and 7(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the
Group assesses the impairment for its customers based on
different group of customers which share common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. Details of impairment assessment
of trade and other receivables for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 7(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Amount due from a former director
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Amount due from a former director disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1)(d) to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
is as follows:

Mr. Lin Qingxiong OB HE S A

2. ESRHMEWRRE@®
(a) EZEWEE @

R ER 18 30 4 ph 7% 5 A R UCERUR B 3

BEMAE RS-

AEBRABCTERBEREBRSE

2 QI S5 957 4R 7€ &t 1iE TR

ey
=

EEERE-

WA TT A BN B OF 7 7% R MY RES(v)

K7(b) e

ERASEEERREREN — 5
AEBRE A Z KRR R A

EPHABETPHRE

% F

BRBRREPRES NIRKEBH
NN - BE_ZE-NEFR=-F
—N\FT-A=+—RHLFE B
Ko B At FE MR TR (B AT (4 BV R E B B R

BOR WA MIEET(b) °

(b)

BW—&mEESRE

ZRARBEM 2B RBRERE

& o

RIFE B R RERPIZE383(1)(d)EHKE
B W — B AT EEFRIELN T

Maximum
outstanding
balance during
the year

2019
FRRS
REEEH
RMB’000

ARETFTE

RMB’000
AR T

339 -

—_E-NF -

2018

2—)\F

RMB'000

AREFTT

339
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 22. SRITRB &6

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT

RMB ARE 1,773 240
usb eV 2,295 1,021
HK$ BT 491 153
4,559 1,414
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the ARBHBBINERET (R RIIMNEE § &
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration By R (FEE-EERNEFTERE) B
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange BN ARE (R EIINEE BIERM) K&
Regulations. However, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange (EE -SERNETERTE)  ~EEE
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale HEEREREETIEEB ZRITEAR
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is BHBRABAEME -

permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ES R EHMENRIE

2019 2018
—2-nE —E2N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Trade payables 2 5 N IA 86,563 54,300
Advance payments from customers B8R 10,650 9,279
Payables for purchases of property, BEWE WFEREREEMNFKIE
plant and equipment 35,823 34,145
Salary payables JE A1 357 23,850 23,371
Interest payables JE A T & 55,999 37,160
Other payables and accruals Hith et B R ESTE A 34,723 29,340
247,608 187,595
An aging analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting RBEHARBEEZELINE ZEFHKIA
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: REe T T

2019 PAON RS}
—g-nE —E)\&

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBT T

Within 3 months 3 AR 19,841 15,055
Over 3 months but less than 12 months 31& B LA =18 4 7M121{E A 34,789 11,250
Over 12 months 1218 A KA 31,933 27,995

86,563 54,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

24. BORROWINGS

24. &R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

2019 2018
—E—-hF — )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Current; mE)

Secured bank borrowings (note a) BEMETER (Hixa) 130,123 190,173
Unsecured bank borrowings (note a) I IFERITE K (MfsFa) 13,519 13,519
Unsecured bonds (note b) EIEHES (H5b) 425,603 326,797
569,245 530,489

Non-current; IERE :
Secured bank borrowings (note a) BEMETER (HiEa) 90,000 30,000
Unsecured bonds (note b) mIEHES (H5b) 299,981 248,660
389,981 278,660
959,226 809,149

Notes:

Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB133,642,000 (2018: RMB133,692,000) were
overdue by the Group due to temporary shortage of funds. As a
result, the Group is subject to a penalty interest expense during
the overdue period.

The Group's bank borrowings of approximately RMB220,123,000
(2018: RMB220,173,000) were secured by its property, plant and
equipment (note 17) and leasehold land and land use right/right-
of-use assets (note 18).

The effective interest rates on bank borrowings were ranging
from 5.64% to 12.48% (2018: 5.64% to 14.58%) per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

GES

RITIE

R-ZE—hFE+-_A=+—H BARELY
R AEELARK133,642,0007T (=
=— \F: AR¥133,692,0007T) KISRITHE
REEH - At AEBE B @AM
SERHX -

N5 H SR AT A A R #220,123,0007T
(ZZE—N\F: AR¥%220,173,0007T) HE
ME - BEREE(HF17)UAREEL
RtiE AR (EREAE (ME18) fEK
o

HE-_Z—NF+-A=+—HLEEIR
TEFTNEBRFEFNEN T5.64%%12.48%
(ZZF—)\F:5.64%%14.58% ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

24. BF @m0
M3 s ()

24. BORROWI N GS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@@ IRITER @)
IRIT AR AR EE R B H15)

(a) Bank borrowings (Continued)
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the bank
borrowings is analysed as follows:

AT

2019 PAONES]

—ZE-hEF —T—NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AR®ET T

Within one year —F AR 143,642 203,692
In the second year F-FR 90,000 30,000
233,642 233,692

(b)  Unsecured bonds

As at 31 December 2019, the Company issued a number of HK$-
denominated bonds with an aggregate principal of approximately
RMB425,603,000 (2018: RMB671,815,000). The bonds are
unsecured, bearing interest rates at a range of 1.5% - 40%
(2018: 1.5% - 14%) per annum, and repayable during the
period from January 2020 to April 2028 (2018: January 2019 to
December 2027). The maturity profile of the carrying amount of
the bonds is analysed as follows:

by EEFES

RZTE—NF+ZA=+—8 AR A%H
TEHUBTHENES ASREHA
R #425, 603000m(_:—/\¢ AR
671,815,0007T ) ° HFREBEEM RE
AT, 5%i4o%(:A—/\¢ 15%
E14% ) BV ER T _TF—AE =

_/\Emﬂ(:A—J\E-_ —nﬁ—ﬂ

ZEE

—RoEFT A HHER ZFES
E’\JEEETEEI’\J@J,HJ%\@/

AT

2019 2018

—E-hF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR% T ARET T

Within one year —F AR 425,603 326,797
In the second year —FR 58,377 13,997
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEFERF (BREERWE) 149,856 138,350
After five years AEFEE 91,748 96,313
725,584 575,457
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

25. DEFERRED INCOME 25. IEEEU A

2019 2018
= AN

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Government grants relating to BEREEE MELTHR
right-of-use assets/leasehold land TiE RN BB
and land use right 13,410 13,722
The movements of deferred income during the year are as BEIERARFRREBHTI 0T -
follows:

2019 PAONES)
—g-nE —ET-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET ARBTIT

At 1 January n—HA—H 13,722 17,237
Amortised as income 58 AU A (312) (3,515)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 13,410 13,722
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 26. EEFEEE
Capitalised
interest
EXRRE
RMB’000
ARKET T
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-—NF—H—H (1,569)
Credited to profit or loss RIEZFPETA 1,150
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE—NF+ZA=+—HK

—E-NF—H—H (419)
Credited to profit or loss RIEZHPETA 419
At 31 December 2019 R=-B-hF+=HA=+—H -
At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused PEREHAR - 7N & E 7] A VR S oK 21 1) &Y
tax losses of approximately RMB266,384,000 (2018: AE)ATIEE 14 A K #266,384,0007T
RMB221,637,000) available for offset against future (ZZE—N\F: ARM221,637,0007T) ° F
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due T V5 ORI R 2R g MRS - B R B RRR RE T
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included BEE AERAVEEBELEMSRAFA
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately B EEHAR243,917,00000 (= F
RMB243,917,000 (2018: RMB199,169,000) that will expire in — )\ : AR#199,169,0007T)  E b Fi

five years. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. EEBEATERRASE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & f Bf % 3R 3% ff &t
For the year ended 31 December 2019
Br T NF+_HA=+—HIFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. A&
Number of ordinary shares
LERKRAEE
‘000
TR
At HK$0.10 At HK$1.00 At HK$0.01
per share per share per share HK$°000
SREE BREE BREE
0.10% T 1.0058 7T 0.01% T THET
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January 2018, R_Z-\§—A—8
31 December 2018 and —E-N\%F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—8k
“Z-nE—HA—H 10,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Effects of share consolidation RoEHHEE
(note (b(i)) (FizE(be) ) (10,000,000) 1,000,000 . S
Effects of share subdivision ROFANEE
(note (b)) (B (b)) ) - (1,000,000) 100,000,000 N
At 31 December 2019 R-E-h&E+=-A=+-H = = 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—\&E—F—H 1,550,000 . - 155,000
Issue of shares (note (a)) BT (M5EG)) 310,000 - - 31,000
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\F
1 January 2019 +ZRA=+—Hk
“Z-NF—HA—H 1,860,000 - - 186,000
Share consolidation (note (b(i) B4 & B (FEE (o) (1,860,000) 186,000 - -
Capital reduction (note (b(ii))) RSB (B 52 (o)) - (186,000) 186,000 (184,140)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-h&E+ZA=+-H - - 186,000 1,860
Equivalent to RMB'000: BERARETT:
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-\E+-A=1+—H 150,493
At 31 December 2019 R=B-NF+=A=1-H 1,505
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

(a)

138

On 17 May 2018, the Company and the placing agent entered
into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of
310,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a price of
HK$0.10 per share under general mandate. The placement was
completed on 29 June 2018. As the shares were issued at par
value, the share issue expenses of approximately RMB350,000

was debited to the Company’s share premium account.

On 19 June 2019, the Capital reorganisation (“Capital
Reorganisation”) has become effective after the change of

domicile on 24 May 2019 which comprises the following:

@

(iii)

share consolidation on the basis of every ten issued and
unissued existing shares of par value HK$0.10 each into
one consolidated share of par value HK$1.00 each;

reduction of the issued share capital of the Company
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the
issued consolidated share so that the nominal value of
each issued consolidated shares will be reduced from
HK$1.00 to HK$0.01 and the credit of HK$184,140,000
arising from the capital reduction will be credited to the
contribution surplus account of the Company; and

the share subdivision of each authorised but unissued
consolidated share of HK$1.00 (including those arising
from the capital reduction) into one hundred adjusted
shares of HK$0.01 each.
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27.

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce debts.
No change was made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
is that in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange,
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group has maintained a sufficient public float to comply with
the Listing Rules from the date of the Listing.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Share premium and Contributed surplus
The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and proceeds
received from the issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

27.

28.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HIFE

[N
KREBHEEARAERE B EZEARBAEER
Boe NEEEE FBELLERKBRAL
HARRRERALDSR NEBMHE ARG
BeEREREERTD -

AEBEFBEREARANEEBENE
AR REEENEARE  AEEKE
HBIR S BCS, ~ BT RN B R B AD (B B DA e B
THE BRRAEHILEEENRD
EBERFEBRBEARBE - BE_T—N
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28. RESERVES (Continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(a)

(b)

(d)

140

Share premium and Contributed surplus (continued)
The Board cancelled the entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company and
to transfer the credits arising from such cancellation to an
account designated as the contributed surplus account
of the Company before the Change of Domicile from the
Cayman Islands to Bermuda becoming effective. After
the approval of the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting by way of special resolution, the account
designated as the contributed surplus account of the
Company shall be the contributed surplus account of
the Company within the meaning of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda upon the Change of Domicile becoming
effective.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve of the Group mainly represents the
reserve arising from the Group reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Group's PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the
Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to allocate 10% of
its profit after tax as determined in accordance with the
relevant accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to PRC companies to the statutory reserve until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
appropriation to the reserve must be made before any
distribution of dividends to equity holders. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to offset previous years’
losses, if any, and part of the statutory surplus reserve can
be capitalised as paid-in capital provided that the amount
of such reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall not
be less than 25% of the paid-in capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29. A QAR BRRRREEEH
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the

(a) R2BHBMRREK

Company
2019 PAONRS}
—E—-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREEFIT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BARRIEE 352 352

JE Ui B B 1 B 5K0R - -

Amount due from subsidiaries

352 352
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H i pE W R IE 18 74
Cash and bank balances He MiRTTH % 51 150
69 224
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H e 5RIE 3,504 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries e B B A B FRIA 27,245 28,098
Borrowings EE 425,603 326,797
456,352 354,895
Net current liabilities nEEEFHE (456,283) (354,671)
Total assets less current BEHAERRBAE
liabilities (455,931) (354,319)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings EE 299,981 248,660
Net liabilities EERE (755,912) (602,979)

AHEBRNERAERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-F-NEF-A=+—HLEE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29. AT BB AKX R EESE
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )

(Continued)

(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) A2 "B FEAR R R ()
Company (continued)

2019 2018
—g-hE ZF)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Equity xR
Share capital % s 1,505 150,493
Reserves (note 29 (b)) fi& 8 (B 5£29(b)) (757,417) (753,472)
Total deficit &5 A A8 (755,912) (602,979)
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of R_E_TF+AtHEESESHE
Directors on 7 July 2020. R R E
Wu Jianxiong Lin Guogin
REg PREIER
EFE BE
Director Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29. AR MBMRAR R EEEE

RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (40
(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) &R TEEEEE

Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total

R EME RARH Rt bR b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETTL

At 1 January 2018 R=ZE-N\F—A—H 737,285 - (1,098,390) (361,105)
Issue of shares IR G (350) - - (350)
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ FREERZEKZAE
for the year - - (392,017) (392,017)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—-HBk
“Z-NE-A-H 736,935 - (1,490,407) (753,472)
Capital reorganisation RAER (736,935) 885,923 - 148,988
Loss and total comprehensive FRBERZEKGZAE
income for the year - - (152,933) (152,933)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NF
+ZA=+-H - 885,923 (1,643,340) (757,417)
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 30. EAREIE
Capital commitment contracted but not provided for at the end RREHARCINESABEEREYAEE
of the reporting period but not yet incurred are as follows: B EARNAFAFET

2019 2018
—2-nE —TN\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETIT

Property, plant and equipment W B R 3,387 4,654

AHEBRNERAERAA
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#

31.

32.

144

EE-NFF A= —HIFE

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no commitment
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of premises for factory and office. As
at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

—FR

Within one year

1. REBERH

REBEREBRA
R-ZE-NE+-A=1+—H A&EEH®
WEER AR E LA HELEHERT
MARKEBRENFTAE - R_F—N\F
TZA=ZT—R THREKLEHEHERT
MEMNARKREES M HARERNAT :

2018
—N\F

RMB'000
ARETT

933

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of two years and rentals are fixed over the
lease terms and contingent rentals.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the course of business, the Group has received claims
from suppliers, customers and lenders concerned with the
quality of goods and repayment of debts, including claims of
insignificant or unspecified amounts. The directors are of the
opinion that the Group has a meritorious defence against these
claims. Accordingly, the directors do not believe that these
claims will have any material adverse impact on the Group and
accordingly no provisions have been made in respect thereof.

(@) Winding up Petition

On 20 September 2019, the Company received the
Petition from the Petitioner in the matter of the
Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance (Chapter 32, Laws of Hong Kong) filed in the
High Court under Companies Winding-up Proceedings
No. 283 of 2019 that the Company may be wound
up by the High Court. The Petitioner is the holder of
the Bonds. Since then, the Company entered into two
repayment agreements with the Petitioner in relation
to the repayment under the Bonds. The Petitioner
alleged that the outstanding indebtedness owed by the
Company to him up to 11 March 2019 was approximately
HK$2,890,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(a) Wlndlng up Petition (continued)

The Company engaged professional parties to prepare
the documentations for a financial restructuring plan in
respect of all of the Company’s total indebtedness. To
facilitate the Company’s financial restructuring, on 10
October 2019, a winding up petition together with an
application for the appointment of the JPLs on a light
touch approach for restructuring purpose was presented
and filed with the Bermuda Court by the Company’s
Bermuda Counsel, Conyers Dill & Pearman at the request
of the Company.

On 24 October 2019, the Bermuda Court made the orders
as sought by the Company under the JPL Application,
inter alia, Tang Chung Wah and Kan Lap Kee of Shinewing
Specialist Advisory Services Limited and Edward Alexander
Niles Whittaker of R&H Services Limited be appointed as
joint and several provisional liquidators of the Company
on a light touch approach for restructuring purpose and
following the appointment of the JPLs pursuant to the
Bermuda Court Order, the JPLs informed the Company
that the JPLs intend to seek their appointment to be
recognized by the High Court in Hong Kong.

On 24 January 2020, the High Court in Hong Kong
granted an order to, inter alia, recognize the appointment
of the JPLs and that so long as the Company remains
in provisional liquidation in Bermuda, no action or
proceeding shall be proceeded with or commenced
against the Company or its assets or affairs, or its property
within the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Court, except
with leave of the High Court of Hong Kong and subject to
such terms as the Hong Kong Court may impose.

The joint application of the Petitioner and the Company
by way of the consent summons, an order was made by
the High Court on 5 March 2020 that the Petition be
dismissed. Whilst the Petition was dismissed, the winding
petition for restructuring purpose in Bermuda will still
continue to facilitate the debt restructuring.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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A HENEHEABEBEMNEGEKFM
BHAEERBERARZHBARER
24T+ LA X R&H Services Limited Z
Edward Alexander Niles Whittaker &
ARG ERMEZFEREEA R
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continues)
(b) Demand for repayment of borrowings

146

0)

(ii)

(iii)

On 3 February 2018, Mr. Lin Yingjie (“Mr. Lin")
filed a claim through Fujian Province Shishi
City People’s Court (fREZEAM M ARER)
against to an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, Hongtai (China) Co., Limited (7&
K (FHE)ER QA ("Hongtai (China)”) for the
repayment of outstanding borrowing in aggregate
of approximately RMB1,350,000. Up to the date
of these consolidated financial statements, the
legal proceeding in respect of above case was still
in progress and the outcome of which cannot be
ascertain. Accordingly, the directors consider that
no provision for the claim is required in preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

On 18 June 2019, Mr. Liang Chi Yuan filed a claim
through the District Court of The Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “District Court”)
in respect of the bond principal with interest of
approximately HK$2,070,000 and default interest
on HK$2,000,000 at rate of 15% per annum
from 1 May 2019 until repayment. Up to the date
of consolidated financial statements, the legal
proceeding in respect of above case was still in
progress and the outcome of which cannot be
ascertain. Accordingly, the directors consider that no
provision for the claim is required.

On 26 September 2019, Mr. Lui Chun Kit filed a
claim through the High Court for the repayment
bonds principal and interest of approximately
HK$3,070,000. Up to the date of consolidated
financial statements, the legal proceeding in respect
of above case was still in progress and the outcome
of which cannot be ascertain. Accordingly, the
directors consider that no provision for the claim is
required.
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continueq)
() Contract disputes

0)

(i)

Since 9 November 2016, claim of approximately
RMB2,620,000 in aggregation was brought against
Hongtai (China) by a supplier namely 5B #) 4R
MR SHOLAR QG (the “Plaintiff 1”) alleging
that Hongtai (China) was liable for payment of
defected goods supplied to Hongtai (China) by the
Plaintiff 1. This case was filed in the Chongging
Nan'an District People’s Court (EE M EERE A
EABE) against Hongtai (China). Up to the date
of these consolidated financial statements, the
legal proceeding in respect of above case was still
in progress and the outcome of which cannot be
ascertain. In preparing these consolidated financial
statements, the directors are of the opinion
that no provision of the claim of approximately
RMB2,620,000 is necessary as having considered the
legal advice from the Group’s PRC legal counsel, the
directors believe that the Company has merits in the
defence against the claim.

On 23 January 2017, claim of approximately
RMB2,244,000 in aggregation was brought against
Hongtai (China) by a supplier namely # H i i 2245
KBREEE 5 AR AT (the "Plaintiff 2”) alleging that
Hongtai (China) was liable for payment of defected
goods to the Plaintiff 2. This case was filed in the
Fujian Province Shishi City People’s Court ({22%&
AT ABRJART) against Hongtai (China). Up to
the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the legal proceeding in respect of above case was
still in progress and the outcome of which cannot
be ascertain. Accordingly, the directors consider that
no provision for the claim is required in preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(c) Contract disputes (continued)

(iif)

On 18 December 2019, claim of approximately
RMB2,668,000 in aggregation was brought against
Hongtai (China) by a supplier namely #7583z 243
¥ 5PR A A (the “Plaintiff 3") alleging that Hongtai
(China) was liable for payment of goods supplied to
Hongtai (China) by the Plaintiff 3. This case was filed
in the Urumgi Shuimogou District People’s Court
(BBAREMKEBREARZER) against Hongtai
(China). Up to the date of these consolidated
financial statements, the legal proceeding in respect
of above case was still in progress and the outcome
of which cannot be ascertain. Accordingly, the
directors consider that no provision for the claim
is required in preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

148

In relation to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
its related parties during the year:

Name of related party

BARE 1A

Mr. Lin Guogjin (note?

PRER 8K 5 A ()

RHMHE

Interest expenses

HBFX

32. AREE W
(=3 SFCF 0 )

(i)

R-ZE—hAEFE+-_A+N\B &
A(HE)ERAHERFES
YWiREASR AR ([REEA3])
Frigt & £ 4 AR %2,668,000
THERR BEEZAN(FE)A
EEMEREE AL AT ER &
RRIE - ZBERTEBEENR
EmAKEERARERAEKR
(FERBFR-BEEZEA
HUBHmEABH B Ll EER
REREREFIDEET £RHE
REET AL EERAREE
E-_F-NF+-_A=+—8H
IEFENEMHYBHRRFEHE
ZBRELEE-

33. B AR &
() BA G BRE LT HENZS

oA Bk

IRGREHBTE AEERF

NERER T ET X BMT

Nature of transaction

2019
—B-NF
RMB’000
AR®T T

2018
—E—)\F
RMB'000
AREFT

1,523 -

Notes:

(i)

Mr. Lin Guogin was appointed as an executive director of
the Group with effect from 23 October 2019.

At the end of reporting period, the Group issued a number
of HK$ denominated bonds with aggregate principal
of approximately RMB29,899,000 (2018: Nil) to Mr. Lin
Guogin. The bonds are unsecured, bearing interest rates at
20% per annum (2018: Nil).

The directors of the Group are of the opinion that the
above transactions were entered into under the normal
course of business with terms and pricing policies mutually
agreed by both parties.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(0

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & #f Bt # 3R & Mi &

Balance
Details of the balances with related parties are set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
in notes 19(b) and 21(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The emoluments of directors and other
members of key management during the
year was as follows:

33.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

BEBEARS @
(o) %R

HERH T M ERFITENAHFTE
IR B B B B 15 3R M 5E19(b) B
21(b) °

(d FRESREMEFEEEAS
RYBM a0 h

2019 2018
—2-nE —TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETTT

Fees e 321 313
Other emoluments H A&
Salaries, allowances and o ERREYA S
benefits in kind 2,079 2,539
Retirement benefit scheme RN F &R
contributions 64 97
2,143 2,636
2,464 2,949

Further details of emoluments of directors and other
members of key management during the year are set
out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZE-NFT-A=+—HIFFEF

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries

150

On 15 May 2018, 19 July 2018, 3 August 2018, 28
August 2018 and 30 November 2018, the Group
acquired the entire issued share capital of Ultima Prime
International Ltd (“Ultima Prime”), Digital Assets Group
Co., Limited ("Digital Assets”), Cloud Hase Mining
Limited (“Cloud Hase"”), Moody Technology Research and
Development Co., Limited ("MTR&D") and Guangzhou
Seojin Trading Co., Limited (”Seojin”) (collectively
as the “Acquired Companies”) for considerations of
approximately RMB342,000, RMB9,000, RMB9,000,
RMB60,000 and RMB175,000 respectively (the
" Acquisition”).

Immediately prior to the completion of Acquisition, the
Acquired Companies were inactive. The fair value of the
identifiable assets of Acquired Companies acquired as at
the date of Acquisition are as follows:

34. EHREREBRMEE

() WEMELE

RZE—NFEA+HEB - ZZ—N
FEtA+NAB - ZZE—NENA=
BH-—Z2—N\HFNA-_+ N NBEKZ
TE-NEFE+—A=+H KEBABRK
B Ultima Prime International Ltd
([Ultima Prime]) #iFxrEEEH
ERRAR(I&FTEE]) ZHES
BRAF(TEFE]) iRt 5
BERAR ([ ]) REMNE#E
E5ERARI([EMNEE]) (58
BIKEAR])2HEBHITRA R
EDRK B ARY342,0000 AR
#9,0007C * A R #9,0007T - A R ¥
60,0007T & A R#175,0007T ([ 4288
FIE]) o

BERWBFECKA KEARLN
AE-RNBBEH WEENEEA
AIMA BB EERFENT:

Ultima Digital Cloud
Prime Assets Hase MTR&D Seajin Total
Ultima
Pime HFEE EHE RRE  BNEE et
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARKTT ARBTT ARBTR
Amounts due from U AR R A
shareholders 342 9 9 60 175 595
Settled by cash B & &1 342 9 9 60 175 595
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=1—ALFE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. 8§ BEE€REXRK T @

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities
The table set forth below is the detail changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

METHELENEEYHER

TRAMAEERERHELNAR
MEY BRASNIFRSETH B
BRYMELRAERREREECNK
ARBREREFNAKEAHRER
EXTHBERBMERDRERENE

Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash f& o
flows from financing activities.

Borrowings Bonds Total

fa =k B% Mt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBEFIT AREBTT ARETIT

At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—N\F—H—H 251,761 473,900 725,661
Cash flow ReRE (27,095) 19,414 (7,681)
Interest expenses FBAX 21,077 82,143 103,220
Transfer to interest payables BARMTE (12,051) - (12,051)

At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\F+-A=+—AK

1 January 2019 —T-nF—H—H 233,692 575,457 809,149
Cash flow RBERE (1,263) 22,299 21,036
Interest expenses MERX 20,052 127,828 147,880
Transfer to interest payables X ENF & (18,839) - (18,839)
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE+=A=+—H 233,642 725,584 959,226

B ERAERAD T
2019 FERE
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